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Dear Judge Hagler, 
March 13, 2013 

First, thank you for presiding over this case. I know that it can't be easy and am grateful to Your 
Honor for Your Honor's effort. 

At the end of our hearing on February 25, 2013, Your Honor stated, "I know I have the other 
motions that I haven't been able to get to. . . " (see Exhibit 11, Page 29, Line 16). I realized then that 
many of the facts and important aspects of our case may have gone unnoticed by Your Honor or may 
not have appeared significant to Your Honor because Your Honor did not have an opportunity to read 
our Opposition documents and other materials. Therefore, I will very succinctly explain the most basic 
arguments at this time that, respectfully, Your Honor should consider before deciding the ABA's 
unbelievably specious motions to dismiss and for sanctions. (That said, there is much very important 
material that i. already in the record, which is already in Your Honor's possession, including many 
Exhibits evidencing certain defendants' publications, such as "Nazis killed millions of Jews. . . How can 
something that feels so right be wrong?" (in a section of an Internet website entitled "Joseph 
Rakofsky, " close to a photograph of me and an elderly relative wearing yarmulkes, which was copied 
from my personal and private Facebook page without my consent), etc. ) See Exhibit 12. 

Further, on February 25th, Your Honor indicated that Your Honor was proceeding under a 
grave misunderstanding of the relevant facts. When Mr. Goldsmith stated that a conflict between me 
and my client precipitated the mistrial, Your Honor stated, "The transcript spoke otherwise. That's not 
what Judge Jackson said. " (see Exhibit 11, page 14, line 25. ) However, we have included as Exhibits to 
each and every Opposition document (that, respectfully, Your Honor has "not been able to get to") the 
entire transcript for Thursday, March 31, 2011, and pointed out that Judge Jackson stated "[T]here 
appears to be a conflict that has arisen between counsel and the defendant. . . [T]his is not an issue of 
manifest necessity (emphasis added). . . . . . I'm inclined to grant a mistrial, but I want [Mr. Rakofsky's 
client] to sleep on it overnight. " Judge Jackson said this on Thursday, March 31, 2011, and later again 
on the next day. On Friday, April 1, 2011, Judge Jackson stated, "Let me say that this arose in the 
context of counsel, Mr. Rakofsky, approaching the bench and indicating that there was a conflict that 
had arisen between he and Mr. Deaner. Mr. Deaner, when I acquired of him, indicated that there was, 
indeed a conflict between he and Mr. Rakofsky. Mr. Rakofsky actually asked to withdraw mid-trial. . . " 

The fa't is, Mr. Goldsmith's statement to Your Honor on February 25th is precisely what Judge 
Jackson said. As Your Honor will discover when Your Honor reads the Opposition documents and the 
transcripts attached thereto, there was never any criticism of me by Judge Jackson about my 
performance or about anything pertaining to me when Judge Jackson expressly stated in open court that 
there was a conflict between me and my client on the record and that, because of the conflict, he was 
inclined to declare a mistrial. There was never any discussion of my having done anything that might 
have raised ethical issues, which I never did; as Your Honor will discover when Your Honor reads the 
Opposition documents and the Exhibits attached thereto, the complaint, which was filed by and 
thoroughly investigated by the D. C. Bar Counsel as a result of their reading the defamatory 
publications concerning me in the media, was dismissed and the individual who made the allegation 
was punished for having made it. As any reasonable fact-finder would conclude, my motion to 
withdraw as counsel on Thursday, March 31, 2011, solely because of a conflict that existed between 
me and my client, caused the mistrial and it is clearly on the record and in the transcript and already in 
Your Honor's possession. Respectfully, it's really that easy. 



The ABA's motion for sanctions against Plaintiffs and their counsel is founded upon what it 
argues as the "truth" of their publication, which is posited upon statements Judge Jackson made on 
Friday, April 1, 2011, concerning my performance in the brief portion of the Deaner trial that preceded 
the events thai resulted in its ending in a mistrial, Its motion misconceives what it was in the ABA 
publication and it assumes incorrectly that the defamation alleged by Plaintiffs results from Judge 
Jackson's statements that I performed poorly in the brief. It is not the fact that Judge Jackson stated that 
I performed poorly in the portion of the trial of the events that gave rise to the mistrial. That is assumed 
in every lawyer's first trial, which the Deaner case was for me, as I proclaimed to the jury in my 
opening statement. The gravamen of Plaintiffs' complaint is that the ABA published that my "poor 
performance" was the cause of a mistrial to the assumed harm to the defendant (though the facts of the 
Deaner case prove otherwise), when, in fact, it was really my motion to withdraw on Thursday, March 
31, 2011, that caused the mistrial. 

When defamation is based on one event causing another, the order of such events must be 
understood. Indeed, the order of the events lies at the heart of that, which in this case, constituted 
defamation. Your Honor stated, "It's basically sophistry and semantics, You' re just saying it's in the 
wrong order. . . . ) see Exhibit 11, page 27, line 18. One of many errors of the ABA's argument is this: the 
fact that Judge Jackson criticized my performance is irrelevant to the issue of the existence of 
defamation; less-than-perfect performance that does not result in harm to the defendant does not 
constitute defamation. The existence of defamation depends upon the effect of a statement upon the 
presumed lay reader of the publication. Therefore, as we have already stated consistently in our 
Opposition documents, the mere statement that Judge Jackson thought my performance was less than 
perfect is irrelevant to the existence of defamation, especially under the "no harm, no foul" legal 
principle. However, to a lay reader of the ABA publication, rather than upon a skilled and dispassionate 
legal logician to whom the concept might initially seem to be a mere matter of sophistry and 
semanticism, the effect is undeniable (even to the ABA): the lay reader was clearly left with the 
understanding that it was my poor performance at trial that caused a mistrial and harmed my client in 
the process rather than my motion to withdraw as counsel. 

On February 25, 2013, Mr. Harris, attorney for the ABA, stood in your courtroom and stated to 
Your Honor that the ABA is unlike the other defendants in this matter (see Exhibit 11, Page 9, Line 23) 
and requested that Your Honor impose sanctions against me and my attorney, Mr. Goldsmith. Mr. 
Harris made a number of false statements to Your Honor. For instance, Mr. Harris stated that the ABA 
was unlike the other defendants in this law suit. However, even though the ABA clearly is not a 
member of the media, just like the other media companies and bloggers, the ABA, nevertheless, 
published: "Judge William Jackson declar[ed] a mistrial on Friday. . . The Judge ruled after reviewing a 
motion by an investigator claiming Rakofsky suggested he "trick" a witness. " The transcript from April 
1, 2011 proves that Judge Jackson never said that (or anything like it). (See Exhibit 6, ) This clearly 
constitutes Defamation per se, rendering my naming the ABA as a defendant in my law suit perfectly 
reasonable and proper. 

Further, Mr. Harris expressly stated that the ABA was unlike the other defendants in that they 
didn't financia'Iy benefit from their articles. This was also a false statement made by Mr. Harris. As 
Your Honor can plainly see in Exhibits 7 and 8, the ABA sold advertisements just like the other media 
companies and bloggers named in this suit; presumably, the more visitors the ABA website received, 
the more money the ABA could charge to those businesses who would wish to advertise on the ABA 



website. (Such attachments were and are Exhibits in each and every one of our Opposition documents. ) 
Even Your Honor seemed to be influenced by Mr. Harris' lies and stated: "The ABA is not a paper that 

is there to sell more newspapers. . . They don't get money for selling a paper, a dollar, like whatever it 

may be. " S'ee Exhibit 11, Page 24, Line 3. The ABA then sent emails to every lawyer in their entire 
database with a summary of the articles and a hyperlink to access them, so the recipients would visit 
the ABA website and be exposed to the various advertisements as well as the defamatory articles. It is 
crucial to realize that a business (such as the ABA) can generate much more money from an online 
readership than it could from a printed newspaper, such as the "New York Tribune" that Your Honor 
invented on February 25th, which would seem to concentrate on a limited geographic area. See Exhibit 
11, Page 24, line 17. That Mr. Harris would consume judicial resources proclaiming to be unlike the 
other defendants when, in fact, in many respects, the ABA's acts have been even more calculated and 
even more destructive to me personally and professionally is beyond belief. 

In addition, at the February 25, 2013 hearing, Mr, Harris deviously intimated that I refused to 
eliminate the Negligence cause of action from my proposed 2" Amended Complaint. However, in my 
July 2012 letter to Your Honor, I clearly stated that if Your Honor felt that the Negligence cause of 
action was inappropriate and should be removed, then I would remove it. 

Further, on February 25, 2013, Mr. Harris stated that I requested the stay, which was instituted 
for nearly a year, although this is not true. I requested a stay, but after it had terminated, it was re- 
instituted by Judge Goodman (for her own personal reasons); I requested a stay for only a reasonable 
and standard period of time. However, it has been nearly 2 years since we filed the Complaint and there 
has been almost no movement since. 

Moreover, at the February 25, 2013 hearing, Mr. Harris did not dispute that it was I who 
initiated the mistrial by moving to withdraw on Thursday, March 31, 2011. Instead, he validated it by 
stating to Your Honor that Judge Jackson merely formally declared the mistrial on Friday, April 1, 
2011. On Thursday, March 31, 2011, Judge Jackson said repeatedly that he was inclined to grant the 
mistrial, but wanted my client "to think about it overnight. " In other words, all acts required to 
accomplish the mistrial had already been done; the only thing left was for my client to think about it. 
All of this can be seen in the transcripts attached hereto as Exhibit 5. (Of course, I provided the 
Thursday, Ma ch 31, 2011 transcripts to Your Honor as Exhibits in each and every one of our 
Opposition papers as well. ) The issue is not when Judge Jackson formally declared the mistrial, but 
why he did so. 

On January 6, 2013, my attorney, Matthew Goldsmith, submitted a letter to this Court which stated: 

Dear Judge Hagler, 

I just re-read the transcript from the June 28, 2012 hearing (p. 66, Lines 5 and 6). When Your 
Honor asked me if "the email talks about trick and is that fair reporting, " I realized only upon 
reading the transcript that I didn't understand what Your Honor was asking me as this Court's 
question related to the "old lady, " who was not ever a witness in the Deaner case. Please allow 
me to be perfectly clear: As we have stated clearly and categorically in all our filings with the 
Court in opposition to motions to dismiss in which the issue was raised, the "old lady" was NOT 
a witness either for the Government or for the defendant. Therefore, it was not "fair reporting" 
to state in any publication that Mr. Rakofsky, in his email to his investigator, asked the 



investigator to "trick a witness, " in part because the "old lady, " the person to whom the email 
referre:1, was not a witness. In fact, such a statement was defamatory per se, as the case law we 
provided to this Court easily demonstrates. I apologize for any confusion this may have caused 
to Your Honor. 

I wanted to draft a letter to this Court immediately upon learning of the misstatement, before 
Court opened, because I would like to clear up any potential confusion to assist the Court and 
the preservation of the record and point out that, even though all of our Opposition documents 
make it crystal-clear that the subject of the Washington Post article was NOT a witness, I 
misspoke on June 28, 2012 with respect to that issue. 

I respectfully stand by our only allegations and submissions as set forth in the Amended 
Complaint and all of our Opposition documents as they relate to fair reporting that to accuse 

Mr. Rakofsky and his law firm of attempting to trick a witness is false and untrue and 
defamation per se. Period. 

However, at our hearing on February 25, 2013, ABA counsel, Mark Harris, tried to pull a fast one on 
Your Honor. At that time, Mr. Harris stated to Your Honor: "Mr. Goldsmith has now conceded both of 
these facts. That was one of the things that came out of the June 28 conference. Reading from the 
transcript itself, Mr. Goldsmith said, 'Please trick the old lady, that is a fair report of what the email 
stated. '" See Exhibit 11, Page 3, Line 18. On February 25th, it was Mr. Harris who attempted to trick 
Your Honor by mendaciously intimating that a misstatement inadvertently made by Mr. Goldsmith, 
which was co'"'rected by Mr. Goldsmith approximately 7 weeks before the February 25th hearing, in 
early January 2013, was an example of Mr. Goldsmith "conceding" the ABA's point. Mr. Harris 
apparently didn't believe Your Honor would be aware on February 25th that Mr. Goldsmith, on or 
about January 6th, explained and cleared up his misunderstanding of Your Honor's question, which 
Your Honor asked Mr Goldsmith at the June 28 conference. This is yet one more instance of many 
examples of the bad faith under which the ABA and Mark Harris bring their motions. 

I could go through the transcript from the February 25, 2013 hearing and point out each and 
every false statement Mr. Harris made to Your Honor, but I know that is not the best way for Your 
Honor to spend Your Honor's time. (In any event, the materials we submitted to this Court — that are 
already in Your Honor's possession — clearly demonstrate that many of the statements Mr. Harris 
uttered to Your Honor in Your Honor's own courtroom were false statements. ) Many of the statements 
are directly contradicted by the Opposition documents and other materials we already submitted 11 
months ago. The simple fact is, the ABA consumed Your Honor's time and resources and requested 
sanctions against me and my attorney, even though it was they who defamed me. They now attempt to 
use their enormous resources to intimidate me with the threat of sanctions when it is they who clearly 
violated the law and piled on to effect the complete destruction of my reputation and business. In 
addition, they did this and harmed this Court in the process by subjecting Your Honor to a hearing they 
sought in bad faith. Further, the ABA's request for sanctions ultimately cost me several thousand 
dollars in atto, :ney fees. The simple fact is, the ABA is even more pernicious than many of the other 
defendants named in this matter because it is asking Your Honor to permit it to conduct its business in 
any way it sees fit (regardless of who is destroyed) and then hide behind its "purpose" (see Exhibit 11, 
page 9, line 23) as it consumes this Court's resources, as well as my own. 

I realize, by filing my pleadings and other materials, I have already asked Your Honor to read a 
massive amount of information. I spent all of my savings and all of my time researching, writing and 



manufacturing the pleadings and especially the Opposition documents in Your Honor's possession, but 

understand that it would take some time for Your Honor to be fully conversant with the facts. I know 

Your Honor has many other cases, each involving litigants who are also requesting and expecting Your 
Honor to read their materials as well. Therefore, I will provide the main points to this matter as 

succinctly as possible. 

On Thursday, March 31, 2011, I moved to withdraw as counsel for Dontrell Deaner because of 
a conflict that existed between me and my client. On Thursday, March 31, 2011, the Judge stated that 
His Honor was inclined to grant the mistrial formally; respectfully, this fact alone should indicate to 
Your Honor tl;at it was my motion to withdraw that precipitated the mistrial (that was formally 
declared on the record the next morning). The determination to grant a mistrial was stated on Thursday, 
March 31, 2011, following Mr. Deaner's agreement to waive his Constitutional Due Process rights and 

the formal announcement of it was expressly postponed solely to give Mr. Deaner overnight the 

opportunity to consider his waiver of his Constitutional rights. The first action taken by Judge Jackson 
on Friday, April 1, 2011, was to inquire of Mr. Deaner whether he still wished to waive his 
Constitutional rights, which he did, which resulted in the formal announcement of the mistrial. 

There was never any criticism of my performance by Judge Jackson or by anyone on Thursday, 
March 31, 2011. (Of course, I provided the Thursday, March 31, 2011 transcripts to Your Honor as 
Exhibits in each and every one of our Opposition documents, but I have attached another copy to this 
letter, for Your Honor's convenience. See Exhibits 4 and 5. ) On Thursday, March 31, 2011, Judge 
Jackson stated, "[T]here appears to be a conflict that has arisen between counsel and the 
defendant. . . [T]his is not an issue of manifest necessity (emphasis added). . . " All of Judge Jackson's and 

my statements are in the transcript. As any reasonable person would easily see, the mistrial was 
precipitated by my motion to withdraw (although, the judge formally made his decision on the 
following day, April 1, 2011). Further, I stated in my letter to Your Honor written in early July 2012: 

We understand that Your Honor has suggested the possibility that the cause of the mistrial may 
be affe". ted by the concurrence of more than one possible cause. We respectfully submit that 
such reasoning misapplies the meaning of "cause" and that a ruling of a mistrial during trial can 
have only one cause: that, without which, the subject of the cause could not exist, better referred 
to, perhaps, as the "proximate cause. " Respectfully, at the Deaner trial, there could only be one 
specific event which caused the mistrial (i. e. , the proximate cause). That can only be the motion 
by Mr. Rakofsky to withdraw as the lead counsel for Dontrell Deaner on Thursday, March 31, 
2011, since that was the act without which the mistrial would never have arisen and which 
preceded any acts that might be thought by the Court to have affected Judge Jackson's 
subjective statements on Friday, April 1, 2011, which necessarily followed in point of time to 
Mr. Rakofsky's motion to withdraw. To the extent that Judge Jackson may be thought to have 
been affected in his statements of Friday April 1, 2011, to have been influenced in those 
statements by acts other than Mr. Rakofsky's motion, those influences necessarily followed, 
in point of time, the motion to withdraw and thus, cannot be said to be the cause of the 
mistrial. Further, any suggestion that unethical or illegal acts attributed to Mr. Rakofsky 
"partially" caused the mistrial (as certain defendants have published), therefore, cannot stand, 
since Judge Jackson stated on the record that His Honor learned about such allegations on 
April 1, 2011, only after Mr. Rakofsky moved to withdraw as lead counsel for Mr. Deaner. 

The ABA published, "Judge William Jackson declar[ed] a mistrial. . . after reviewing a motion by an 



investigator claiming Rakofsky suggested he "trick" a witness. " This is not an opinion, but rather a 
false statement of fact. Thus, I merely wish to present this evidence (as well as other evidence) to a jury 
and ask them to decide whether the ABA (and other defendants) broke the law. I'm not asking for 
anything extraordinary, but only only for the bare minimum. 

This brings us to the other major issue. I wrote an email to an investigator using the unfortunate 

word "trick" about a neighbor of my client's. She had already proclaimed that she was not at the 

shooting, had not seen anything or anyone on the night of the shooting and could not have known 

anything about the shooting because she was not present. She said this to me, my law partner, Sherlock 

Grigsby, and my client's mother. I wanted a 3" party to hear her say it as well, so I could put the 3' 

party on the stand and impeach this woman, if the Government were to offer her as a witness; therefore, 
I hired an investigator to accomplish this. The reason I felt that the investigator might need to trick the 
woman into r~eeatin her statements made to ns (as opposed to "changing'* testimony, which never 
existed, because she, never having been a witness, never testified) because the Government paid its fact 
witnesses (as opposed to merely expert witnesses) to testify against my client. See Exhibit 1. (Again, 
this fact is well documented in the materials provided in both the Amended Complaint and in the 
Opposition documents to certain defendants' Motions to Dismiss, which included transcripts to 
hearings in which District of Columbia detectives testified in court, under oath, that such so-called 
"witnesses" were being compensated with money to testify against my client. Again, I attach to this 
letter these same transcripts for Your Honor's convenience. ) It was she who stated to us (and later to the 
2" investigator we hired after the 1" investigator failed to perform) that she was gambling on the night 
of the shooting and was not at the premises. I was reasonably concerned that this woman, like other 
individuals before her, would lie to the Government in exchange for money. After all, this woman was 

my client's neighbor, an admitted habitual gambler and also lived with my client in the projects of 
Southeast Washington, D. C. 

On February 25, 2013, Your Honor inquired of Mr. Goldsmith whether the "old lady" was a 
"prospective" (or "potential" ) witness for the Government. He stated that she, of course, was not a 
witness. Understanding the question to address my knowledge while preparing for Mr. Deaner's trial, 
Mr. Goldsmith answered the question as to my knowledge in the affirmative. However, my knowledge 
is not (and was not) relevant as to whether the subject of the email was a "prospective witness. " In 
United States v. Dontrell Deaner, no witnesses were identified prior to trial and all witnesses were 
known to everyone except the Government as "Confidential Informants. " Therefore, as far as I was 
concerned, almost anyone was capable of being named as a "Confidential Informant" because the 
Government paid its fact witnesses (as opposed to merely expert witnesses) to testify against my client 
(and all of my client's neighbor's were destitute and needed money). In fact, the "old lady" was not a 
"prospective 0r itness" for the Government to the knowledge and intent of the Government. Even at 
trial the Government never named the woman on their list of otential witnesses. Even if she were 
considered by the Government to be a "potential witness, " which she clearly was not, there is a marked 
difference between being a so-called "potential witness" and being a "witness. " 

Viewing the question that Your Honor asked from the knowledge and standpoint of the 
Government, the old lady never was a prospective witness and the question should have been answered 
in the negative by Mr. Goldsmith. Nevertheless, this fact consistently appeared in the record from the 
day I filed this law suit and it has been clearly established through proofs that Your Honor had and 
continues to have before him. They remain in Your Honor's possession. 



In short, the response to Your Honor's question should be deemed that she was not a so-called 
"prospective witness. " Since the status of the old lady as a "prospective witness" or not depends not on 
my knowledge, but is solely dependent on the knowledge and intent of the Government, which never 
intended to call her as a witness and therefore, never considered her to be a "prospective witness, " she 
was not a "prospective witness. " That the Government never intended to call her as a witness, results in 
the plain conclusion that she was not a "prospective witness. " 

It was only at the very end of the hearing on February 25, 2013, that Your Honor stated, "I 
know I have the other motions that I haven't been able to get to. . . " Therefore, up until the moment that 
Your Honor stated this, Mr. Goldsmith was not aware that Your Honor had not read our Opposition 
documents. Because of this fact, to make sure the record is crystal clear, when Mr. Goldsmith stated to 
Your Honor on February 25th that the non-witness was interviewed (see Exhibit 11, page 23, line 8) he 
was under the impression that Your Honor would realize (from having read our Opposition documents) 
that the non-witness was interviewed by only me and Mr. Grigsby, my very experienced co-counsel. 
The non-witness was never interviewed by the Government (either before or after the trial) and 
accordingly, never gave testimony. Thus, contrary to ABA's and Washington Post's defamatory 
publications, which attributed to me the commission of the crime of witness tampering, there could be 
no testimony to "change. " Respectfully, the ABA's publication that I attempted to engage in witness 
tampering, which is a crime, is Defamation per se. The same is true for the Washington Post and the 
other defendants 

Last, the document in Judge Jackson's possession on April 1, 2011 was submitted by an 
individual who was not involved in any way in Mr. Deaner's case and therefore, had no standing to 
submit any documents to Judge Jackson. Although, he was, at one point hired to be our investigator, he 
did no work fear us and accordingly, received no compensation. Instead, he tried to use my email to 
blackmail me into paying him, not with my money, but with the Government's voucher (from Criminal 
Justice Act funds), and thereby, defrauding the Government. I refused to lend my approval to his 
receiving the voucher that would result in his being paid with Government monies, even though he 
blackmailed me and promised me i~nwritin that he would use it to harm me and my career and it 
would not have cost me or my client any money at all to do it. See Exhibit 9. (Again, this fact is well 
documented in the materials provided in both the Amended Complaint and in the Opposition 
documents to certain defendants' Motions to Dismiss. ) Because this individual did not have standing to 
submit documents to Judge Jackson, this individual underhandedly submitted the document to a 
different Judge (and not to Judge Jackson), who, in turn, delivered it to Judge Jackson on the morning 
of Friday, April 1, 2011 {as Judge Jackson so stated on the record). 

In the document, the "investigator" made a number of false statements about me. Judge Jackson 
uttered absolutely none of the false statements on the record. Instead, he merely stated that he "wasn' t 
sure what to make of it" and neutrally stated that it "raises ethical issues. " If what the investigator 
wrote were true, which it was not, then the allegations might have raised ethical issues, but his 
allegations were provably false. In fact, the D. C. Bar Counsel thoroughly investigated, found no ethical 
violation against me and dismissed the matter. (See Exhibit 10). (Their investigation was brought, not 
because anyone filed a complaint against me, but instead, solely because the D. C. Bar Counsel became 
aware of the statements published about me in the media and by other bloggers. The "investigator" who 
submitted the 'pecious document, instead, was suspended and ultimately, was found no longer to be 
eligible to receive CJA vouchers). 



The fact is, the ABA published that I engaged in witness tampering, which as Your Honor well 
knows, being a criminal act, is Defamatory per se, not to mention many other defamatory statements 
about me and my law firm. This fact, by itself, establishes that the ABA's motion for sanctions was 
brought in bad faith and that sanctions should not be imposed against Plaintiffs or Mr. Goldsmith. This 
fact alone warrants that sanctions be imposed against the ABA and Mr. Harris. However, even though it 
has cost me several thousand dollars to be represented by my attorney at the February 25, 2013 hearing, 
I do not ask Your Honor to impose sanctions against either the ABA or Mr. Harris for bringing their 
motion for sanctions in bad faith, but am simply asking for my day in Coin%. 

Further, one of the ABA articles does nothing except discuss comments made by other 
individual bIoggers, thereby republishing the defamation; it does not even purport to be a report on a 
judicial proceeding. 

I know Your Honor has received an enormous amount of information from us. I am grateful to 
Your Honor for accepting this case, as complicated as it is, and for providing me with the "fair shot" I 
requested when we first met. Thank you. 
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A. No, my partner. 

Q. But, again, you indicated that you were present, 

the witnesses -- for the interviews of the witnesses 

were named in that warrant; am I correct? 
A. That's correct. 
Q. Now Witness 1 in the warrant, does Witness 1 have 

relationship with the Metropolitan Police Department' ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what is the nature of that have relationship? 
A. Confidential informant. 

Q. How long has Witness 1 had this working 

relationship with MPD? 

A. Over 20 years. 

Q. And during that time did Witness 1 receive 
monetary compensation for the information it provided to 
the police? 

Yes, it did. 
THE COURT: You mean in this case or in other 

cases? 
MS. BRYANT: In other ca. ses, Your Honor, 
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they aren't expected to be here tomorrow, then I guess 

if they have to sit on Wednesday. That's fine. Thank 

you, your Honor. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: Your Honor, we have a couple of 
questions. Number 1, Do you anticipate sitting on 

Fr 1 days? 
THE COURT: I do, and the reason why I do is 

because trial time is a precious commodity. I would 

have to look and see what I have set for Friday. I 
know I have a sentencing set for Friday. Sometimes I 
have preliminary hearings and felcny status 
conferences. But if I know that my morning is going to 
be pretty busy, then I will have the jury come in at 
noon so at least we get some trial time in. I just 
don't believe in just sort of killing the entire day. 

Particularly in light of the fact that the defendant 

said that they are going to take a week. So I need all 
the days and all the trial time I can get. 

MS. BRYANT: I understand, your Honor, and I 
normally would not have an issue. I had specifically 

21 
22 

requested of Judge Leibovitz that we not sit on Friday, 
st April 1 because of a personal matter that will take 

23 

25 

me out of the jurisdiction on that date. When we 

thought we would be before here, she had granted that 
request of the Government; so I made plans according. 
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THE COURT: All right. I guess, we won't be 

sitting on Friday. 
MS. BRYANT: I apologize. 
THE COURT: So that's where we are. 
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MR. RAKOFSKY: Your Honor, with respect to, I 
think one of the earlier issues we were talking about, 
the phencyclidine, is it permissible for me to make a 
statement in the opening without specifically 
identifying the phencyclidine but indicating that there 
are substances involved which we believe elicited this 
behavior'? 

THE COURT: No. It just seems to me that the 
behavior speaks for itself. But if you' ve got 
Again, it seems to me that -- because either I'm going 
to admit that or I'm not going to admit it. As I said, 
there's a predicate for the behavior -- I mean, as I 
said, a lot of this is not -- I mean, I'm not sure how 

somebody can opine -- an expert can opine -- typically, 
if someone wants to explain irrational behavior, 
bizarre behavior, but that's not what's being elicited 
here. 

So let's assume for the moment that somebody is 
robbing a store and the store person doesn't want to be 
robbed and starts fighting back. Is that bizarre 
behavior'? If that person happens to have some illegal 

33 





P R 0 C E E D I N 9 S 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. 

Crimina. l Action No. 

DONTRELL DEANER, 2008 — CF1 — 30325 

Defendant. 

:0 

Washington, D. C. 
Wednesday, March 30, 2011 

The above-entitled action came on for a Jury 
Trial before the HONORABLE WILLIAM JACKSON, Associa. te 
Judge, and a jury duly impaneled. and sworn in, in 
Courtroom Number 319, commencing at 9: 42 a. m. 

I 3 

THIS TRANSCRIPT REPRESENTS THE PRODUCT 
OF AN OFFICIAL REPORTER, ENGAGED BY THE 
COURT, WHO HAS PERSONALLY CERTIFIED THAT 
IT REPRESENTS THE RECORDS OF TESTIMONY 
AND PROCEEDINGS OF THE CASE AS RECORDED. 

15 APPEARANCES: 

On behalf of the Government: 

18 

VINET BRYANT, Esquire 
Assistant United States Attorney 
Washington, D. C. 

19 On behalf of the Defendant: 
20 JOSEPH RAKOFSKY, Esquire 

SHERLOCK GRIGSBY, Esquire 
Washington, D. C. 

22 

Margary F. Roger s, BS, CRI 
Of f icial Court Reporter 

Telephone (202) 87 9 — 4635 



MR. GRIGSBY: With regards to the punishment 

THE COURT: I can't hear you. 
MR. GRIGSBY: I said, with regards to punishment 

about Javon's -- it's part of the record now. I don' t 
see a reason 
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THE COURT: What do you mean "it's part of the 
record"'? It's not apart of this case yet, not before 
this jury. 

Two things, please don't refer to the young man 

as a "boy". I assume that Javon Walden is not a boy. 
So 1 advise everyone to not reference -- you can say 
"young man". You can say a number of different things 
or use his name, but please. The -- typically this 
comes out of a. context of — — it's really not relevant 
what he's facing or how many years he got and what his 
sentence was. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: Your Honor, respectfully, it is 
so incredibly relevant; and this man, Javon Walden, was 

offered a deal. He was charged with first-degree 
murder. He was offered second-degree murder. And when 

he had everything to lose and absolutely nothing to 
gain. , when he was presented with a deal that most 

people would do anything for, he said on the record, to 
another judge while he was being sentenced, that this 
was not a robbery, that there was never any attempt 
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friends, right in. front of this security camera for 
everybody to see. Do you know a lot of people who 

would do that? 
THE COURT: Counsel, let's not argue. Save that 

for closing argument. Just tell what the facts are 
going to be, what the evidence is going to show in this 
case, please. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: And you are going to learn from 

the Government's own toxicologist and the Government's 
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12 
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15 

17 

own medical examiner that there is very good reason 
THE COURT: Counsel, come to the bench. 
(Bench Conference. ) 

Counsel, we have spent an enormous amount of 
time talking about this, didn't we'? 

MR. RAKOFSKY: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Okay. And what was the Court's 
rul ing? 

18 MR. RAKOFSKY: The Court said I couldn' t mention 

PCP. 

23 

25 

THE COURT: The Court said you couldn't mention 

a PCP or the toxicology. That's what I said, and I 
repeated it, and. I repeated. it. So what part of my 

ruling d. idn't you understand? 

XR. RAKOFSKY: I thought you didn't want me to 
make a specific reference 
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I said you are not bound by the Government's theory 
that this wa. s a robbery. And I said. you could ta. lk 
about behavior, you cannot talk about PCP. 

And so what's the relevance of talking about 

toxicology if you' re not talking about drugs? What 

does it matter? 
MR. RAKOFSKY: Your Honor, I plan to lay the 

proper foundation. You said I could do that. 
THE COURT: No, you. can't lay the proper 

foundation because so far we haven't heard anybody. 

You can't lay a proper foundation because you don' t 
have an expert so far. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: I'm relying on their expert that 
they' re going to 

THE COURT: Their expert has some expertise on 

that? 
MS. BRYANT: I talked to the toxicologist. She 

didn't complete that report and append it to the 

autopsy . 

THE COURT: You have to have a good faith basis 
to believe that you can get evidence in because it' s 

beyond the kin of the average layman as to what the 

effects are, somebody who's competent to testify that 

this amount and this particular person produces this 

type of behavior. And you haven't proffered a single 
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a document called — — we intend to offer into evidence a 
document called "The Affidavit. " This affidavit, just 
like any other affidavit 

MS. BRYANT: Your Honor, may we approach'? 
THE COURT: Yes. 
(Bench conference. ) 

MS. BRYANT: Are we talking about the affidavit 
supporting the arrest warrant? 

MR. RAKOFSKY: Yes, we are. It's perfectly 
germane. Their whole investigation was based on 

statements made in this affidavit, and. you are going to 
see they are pa. tently false, patently false. You are 
going to see that 

THE COURT: But what is the relevance of that? 
MR. RAKOFSKY: It's the motivation for this 

prosecution, Your Honor. It is the fact that from the 
very beginning, throughout this entire investigation, 
Detective Littlejohn, in particular, did a ridiculously 
terrible job. When. you see what he has done, he's done 
a ridiculously terrible job. It was a terrible job. 
And so it is important that they see the statements 
that Detective Littlejohn signed his name to. That is 
the foundation of this prosecution. 

THE COURT: Okay. Let's not talk about stuff 
that may or may not -- or evidence that may or may not 
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this man wbo says Mr -- who says he saw the shooting 
and who said be saw Mr. Elliott get shot in the chest, 
also first said that be did not see Dontrell with the 
gun. Then. later, he said he did see Dontrell with the 
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25 

Now, you are going to see that there are other 
witnesses involved in this investigation. Another of 
whom you are going to hear from, his name is 
Michael Hickman. He was identified to us as Witness 

Number 4. You are going to see that Witness Number 4 

is going to tell you that he saw the shooting also. 
He's going to tell you be saw the shooter, and. he' s 

going to tell you that be saw the shooter -- before I 
get to that, he's going to tell you tha. t Mr. Elliott 
and Javon were -- and Dontrell -- were tussling. Okay? 

Tussling. 
You are going to see that this man also says 

Dontrell did not have a gun. Okay. What's so 

important about Witness Number 4 saying that Dontrell 
did not have a gun'? What would possibly be so 

important about Witness Number 4 saying Dontrell did 
not have a gun. '? You are going to see that not only 

does he say that Dontrell didn't have a gun, you are 
going to see that he says that Javon, the shooter, did 

not have a gun. Okay? 
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happened. It must be attempted robbery. Ms. Bryant 
must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that Dontrell 
knew -- that Dontrell knew there was an attempted 
robbery, or there would be an attempted robbery, which 
she will not be able to do, you will see. 

And we do not have to prove anything. Dontrell 
is already protected with the presumption of innocence. 
We don't have to say anything. It is Ms. Bryant who 

must prove beyond a reasonable doubt, beyond, with real 
evidence, not lies, real evidence that Dontrell 
participated in the so-called attempted robbery in 
front of his home, in front of his friends, and 

neighbors, and family, in front of the police 
department surveillance camera. That's what Ms. Bryant 
must prove, beyond a reasonable doubt. 

I suggest to you that the Government -- strike 
that -- that there's a lot of reason to doubt the 
Government. Okay? 

Your Honor, this is my first trial. This is my 

first trial, and ladies and gentlemen 
MS. BRYANT: Your Honor, may we approach? 
THE COURT: Yes, ma' am, please. 
(Bench Conference. ) 

MS. BRYANT: I'm at the point where I'm getting 
ready to say, "We need to pick a new jury. " I cannot 
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you not to re f er to the young men who ar e out there a. s 
boys because, by la. st count, Javon Walden is 
21-years-old. He's not a boy. 

And so unless you' re referring -- that was my 

only comment. And I think you, quite honestly, tried 
to adhere to the Court's ruling. You slipped a couple 
of times, but you' ve been trying to adhere to the 
Court's ruling in that regard. But to sit there and 

say to this jury, "This is my first tria. l, ". . . 
MR. RAKOFSKY: The whole point, Your Honor, is 

that they not be prejudiced -- that Dontrell not be 
prejudiced for my errors. That is not fair to 
Dontrell. I' ve worked hard on this case. I' ve spent 
over a 1, 000 hours in this case. I' ve done more for 
this case than any other lawyer could possibly do for 
this man, and I am the one he wants to represent him, 
and I am going to make mistakes, and they are entitled 
to know that. 

THE COURT: I understand that, but telling them, 
"This is my first trial, " doesn't -- every attorney 
makes mistakes during the course of the trial. Every 
attorney does. It just happens. That's the nature of 
trials. Judges make mistakes during the courses of 
trials. That's the nature of trials. Okay. My job 
here is to protect the defendant's rights here and also 
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evidence is going to show. And then, finally, you 

turned to me and said, "This is my first trial, " and in 
front of the jury. And I must say, in my years, I have 

not had that experience, but do not involve me in your 

opening statement by turning to me and. . . 
I'm going to let you put on your defense. I 

want you to be able to put on your defense. He' s 

entitled to it. These are serious charges. He' s 

entitled to have a robust defense. I'm not preventing 
you from doing that, but those were my rulings and 

that's why there were objections, and that's why they 
were sustained. 

So we' ll come back here at 2:00 to see where we 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

25 

MR. RAKOFSKY: Thank you, Your Honcr . 

MS. BRYANT: Your Honor, if I may, just briefly, 
for the record, I just -- I really want to make a 

record of the fact that particularly counsel's last 
statement was extremely inflammatory, and it was 

engendering sympathy from the jury for his client based 

on his inexperience. I think that is highly 
inappropriate. I would not, at all, object to the 

selecting of a new jury on that basis. If we are not 

going to do that, I would like permission of the Court 

to address the fact that the case need not be decided 
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based on sympathy, at a minimum, in my closing. 
THE COURT: I' ll do something, either through a 

cautionary instruction to the jury about that statement 
and the like. 

MS. BRYANT: Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT-. All right. 
(Whereupon a recess was taken from 12:30 p. m. to 

2:12 p. m. ) 

DEPUTY CLERK: Calling United States v. Dontrell 
Deaner, Case Number 2008-CF1-30325. 

MS. BRYANT: Vinet Bryant on behalf of the 
United States Government. Good afternoon, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Ms. Bryant. 
MR. RAKOFSKY: Joseph Rakofsky and Sherlock 

Grigsby for Dontrell Deaner. 
THE COURT: Good afternoon. 
MR. RAKOFSKY: Good afternoon. 
THE COURT: All right. The defendant is now 

present. 
DEPUTY CLERK: Are you ready for the jury? 
THE COURT: No. I would like counsel and the 

defendant to approach the Bench, please. 
(Bench Conference. ) 

Good a. fternoon. , Mr. Deaner. 
When we finished, just before we recessed, you 
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recall that your lawyer announced to the Court 

Mr. Rakofsky announced to the jury that this was his 
first trial. I wanted to inquire of you as to your 

comfort level with that. 
Now, I understand that you have chosen him and 

that's your right to have counsel of your own choosing. 
I don't want to interfere with that. If you want him 

as your lawyer in this case and are satisfied with him 

as your lawyer, I will honor. that, - but I just didn' t 
know how you felt in light of that disclosure. Did you 

know that? 
12 DEFENDANT: Yes. 
13 
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15 

16 

18 

20 

22 

25 

THE COURT: Okay. Are you satisfied with that? 
DEFENDANT: Yes. 
THE COURT: Okay. I just wanted to make sure. 

Thank you very much. 

(Open court. } 

I'm concerned, and I want to make sure that what 

happened during the course of the opening statement 
does not continue throughout the trial. I said this, 
again, yesterday, and I said this, I believe, this 
morning before we got started, that I really wanted to 
focus -- to make sure that if there was something of 
dubious admissibility to clear it with the Court before 
mentioning it to the jury. 



I said — — now, I don' t know whether it was 

skillful -- skillfully injecting it into the jury -- to 
the jury in opening statement and disregarded my prior 
ruling about the toxicology report, but it wa. s there, 
There were things that were irrelevant, and I just want 

to make sure that during the course of the examination 

of tbe witnesses -- again, I'm going to give wide 

latitude, as I do, on cross-examina. tion. These are 
serious cases. The charges are serious, and. there are 
serious implications for both the defendant and, of 
course, the Government, but I want to make sure that 
people do not ran a foul of my ruling -- rulings, 
particularly on issues which are highly prejudicial, 
issues for which there is no good-faith basis, or 
issues for which there is no competent evidence that 
could be introduced to support it. 

So I just -- we' re not just going to start 
slinging things around. Again„ there's a lot of -- the 
Government has some witnesses. There's a lot of, a. s I 
understand from the opening statement, a lot of issues 
that can be explored on cross-examination going to bias 
and credibility, and I am going to give full rein to 
the defendant to engage in that. But I'm not going to 
allow things that are high. ly inflammatory and 

prejudicial, calculated only to confuse the jury about 
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the issues in this case. So I just want you -- all 
parties to be aware of that. 

Does the Government want a curative instruction 
at this particular point, or do you want to wait until 
the closing? 

MS. BRYANT: I would ask for a curative 
instruction. just with respect to the last issue that 
was raised, Your Honor, about the level of experience 
of the attorneys in the room. 

THE COURT: Okay. And the form that that would 

take? 
MS. BRYANT: I'm not even sure. I apologize to 

the Court because I' ve never encountered this, but 
THE COURT: In one sense, a curative instruction 

might highlight it. 
MS. BRYANT: Yeah, that's what the problem is. 

That's why this is such a hard call to make. I can. 

argue it, your Honor. 

20 

THE COURT: All right. ' Very well. 
Let's get the jury. 
(Jurors present. ) 

22 

23 

All right. Good afternoon, ladies and 

gentlemen. You may be seated. We are ready to proceed 
with the testimony in this case. 

Ms. Bryant, call your first witness, please. 
99 
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Q Oh, so it's fair to say multiple times? 
A Yes, sir. 
Q More than five? 
A I couldn't tell you. 

THE COURT: Next question. Next question. 
MR. GRIGSBY: Brief indulgence. 
No further questions. 
THE COURT: Any redirect? 
MS. BRYANT: No, Your Honor. 
THE COURT: All right. You may step down. 

THE NITNESS: Thank you. 
THE COURT: Next witness. 
MS. BRYANT: Court's briefest indulgence. 
Okay. Then, at this time, the Government calls 

15 Dr . Marie-Lyd ie Pierre-Louis 
16 

17 Thereupon, 
18 MARIE-LYDIE PIERRE-LOUIS, 

19 having been called as a witness for and on behalf of the 
20 Government and having been first duly sworn by the Deputy 
21 Clerk, was examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

23 BY MS. BRYANT: 

25 

Q I do believe that I have somehow twisted your 
name. So I want to make sure that I have it right. 
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Can you please state your name in the correct order. 
A I'm Dr. Marie-Lydie Pierre-Louis. 
Q Okay. I think I had it right the first time. 

Can you spell all that for us? 
A Yes. It's spelled M-A-R-I-E hyphen L-Y-D-I-E, 

P-I-E-R-R-E hyphen L-0-U-I-S 
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Q Doctor, by whom are you employed? 

A By the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner in 
the District of Columbia. 

Q And how long have you been with the office of 
the Chief Medical Examiner? 

I started there in July 1985. 
Q What is your current position'? 
A I am the Chief Medical Examiner. 

Q And how long have you been Chief Medical 
Examiner? 

A Starting with interim in 2003, acting in 2004, 
and Chief Medical Examiner. Yeah, that's about eight 
years. 

Q Okay. Can you tell us a little bit about your 
educational background? 

I am a physician, and received my medical degree 
from the State University of Port-au-Prince in Haiti 
in 1975. I did, following that, two years of 
residency in internal medicine in. the State University 
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Hospital, also in Port-au-Prince. 
After that, I did a year fellowship in 

gastroenterology in Klinikum, Charlottenburg in West 

Berlin in Germany, and a four-year training in anatomy 

and Clinical Pathology at Howard University Hospital in 
the District of Columbia. After that, I did a one-year 
fellowship in forensic pathology at the Office of the 
Chief Medical Examiner. 

I joined the staff in 1986 after my fellowship. 
I served as the Deputy Medical Examiner until September 
2003 when I did the request of the Government. I took 
a position. . I accepted to serve as the interim, then 
the acting, and then the Chief Med. ical Examiner for the 

14 District of Columbia. 

Q Doctor, I think I have the number of years 
16 
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right, and I believe you said you have been with the 
District of Columbia Medical Examiner's office since 
1985, correct? 

A Yes. 
Q Over the course of the last 26 years, how many 

autopsies would you say you' ve performed, if you had 

to estimate? 
A Between 6, 000 and 7, 000. 
Q And have you been previously qualified to 

testify as an expert in the field of forensic 

119 



10 

12 

13 

15 

17 

18 

patho1 ogy? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q How many times have you been so qua. lified? 
A 500, 600 times. 
Q In which courts have you been qualified as an 

expert? 
A Mainly in the Superior Court of the District of 

Columbia, but I have a. iso been qualified in the 
Circuit Courts of Upper Marlboro, Charles County, 

Rockville in Maryland, and in Virginia: Alexandria. , 

Falls Church, Manassas, and Arlington County, and in 
Federal Court in the District and in Alexandria. 

MS. BRYANT: Your Honor, with that, I would 

offer Dr. Marie-Lydie Pierre-Louis as an expert in the 
field of forensic pathology qualified to render an 

opinion to within a reasonable degree of scientific 
certainty as to the cause and manner of death of 
Frank Elliott on June 16, 2008. 

19 

20 

THE COURT: Any objection? 
MR. RAKOFSKY: No objection. 
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THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, 

ordinarily witnesses are not allowed to give their 
opinion or the reasons for their opinion. . There is an 

exception for this, and those are for expert witnesses. 
Expert witnesses a. re those folks, who because of their 



into evidence. ) 

BY MS. BRYANT: 
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Q Now, what is the date of tbe Prank Elliott's 
death? 

A He died on June 16, 2008. 
Q And how old was be at the time of death? 
A He was forty-one years old. 
Q Now, when tbe autopsy was performed on bis body, 

was that done on tbe same date or a different date'? 

A Was done on the same date of his death. 
Q And did you personally perform the autopsy, or 

were you supervising? 
A No. I performed tbe autopsy. 
Q When you received the body of Mr. Elliott, was 

be still clothed' ? 

A Yes. The body was clad in a short-sleeve 
t-sbirt and denim shorts, black belt, checkered 
underpants, and white socks and sneakers. 

Q And what was the condition of the t-shirt of the 
decedent'? 

A The garments were blood soaked. , and there were 

two perforations, one on the back, one on the front of 
tbe t-shirt. 

Q You say "two perforations. " So does that 
basically mean two holes in the shirt? 
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A Two holes. 
Q Okay. And you said one was on the back, the 

other on the front? 
A Yes. 

MS. BRYANT: Permission to approach, your Honor? 

THE COURT: Yes. 
BY MS. BRYANT: 

Q Okay. Doctor, I am showing you what is -- what 

has been marked as "Government's Exhibit 85, 87, 88, 
89, 90, 91, 92, and 93. " Do you recognize those? 

A Yes, I do. 
Q Okay. And what are they'? 

A They are pictures of the decedent taken. at the 
autopsy table at the time of the autopsy. 

Q Do those photos fairly and accurately reflect 
the condition of Frank Elliott's body as you found it 
at the time that his autopsy was conducted? 

A Yes. 
MS. BRYANT: With that, Your Honor, I would move 

Government's Exhibits 85, and 87 through 93 into 
evidence. 

THE COURT: Any objection? 
MR. RAKOFSKY: No objection, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: They will be admitted without 

objection. 
125 



(Government's Exhibits 85, 87, 88, 89, 90, 91, 
92, and 93 were admitted into evidence. ) 

MS. BRYANT: Permission to publish to the jury, 
Your Honor? 

THE COURT: Yes. 
BY MS. BRYANT: 
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Q Doctor, can you tell us what it is that we are 
looking at? 

A Th. is is the first picture of the deceased. And, 

ladies and gentlemen, T. recognize those evidence based 
on the case number tha. t is unique to this specific 
case. 

Q And why is a picture like this taken? 
A For identification of the body. 
Q Okay. 

Showing you what has been marked a. s 
"t overnment's Exhibit Number 87. " You said that the 
decedent was clothed at the time that he was brought to 
the Medical Examiner ' s office'? 

A Yes. 
Q What is this that we are looking at'? 
A It's a set of dice. 
Q Okay. Was this recovered from somewhere on the 

decedent? 
25 From the clothing. 
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Government's Exhibit Number 88, can you tell 
us 
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A Yes. I 'm sorry. 
It's a picture of the back of the deceased, and 

it's showing a gunshot wound. of entrance to the back, 
to the backside of the back. 

Q Okay. You said this is the entrance wound on. 

the right side of the back'? 

A Yes. 

Q I'm showing you Government's Exhibit Number 89. 
A It is still a close-up picture of the back of 

the deceased, showing the long perforation with 

abrasion color to the right. This is closer to the 
spine, in this area. 

Q So if we 

A And. this is the gunshot wound of entrance. It' s 

just a close-up of the gunshot wound of entrance. 
Q And in order for us to orient ourselves, you 

20 

23 

said the left side of the photo would be closer to the 
spine? 

A Yes. 

Q And the right side would, then, be closer to his 
right shoulder? 

25 Tha't ' s r1. ght . 



12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

25 

Q Okay. 

Now, how do you know that this is a entrance 
wound as opposed to the exit? 

A I just explained why. 

Q Okay. 

A This is a round perforation with an abrasion 
color. 

Q It's round? 

A It's a round perforation. 
Q Okay. So the entrance wound would be round? 
A Usually, yes. 
Q All right. 

Now, show us what we are looking at in 
Government's Exhibit Number 90? 

A You have kind of a slit wound. That is the exit 
wound. 

Q You said, "It's kind of slit?" 
A Yes. 
Q Is that another way of saying that it's on an 

angle? 
A It's kind of lineal. 
Q Okay. 

A It's not a round perforation. An exit wound 

tend to be slit-like, or kind of sta. rlit. It' s 
irregular. 
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THE COURT: Okay. What I -- I can tell you in 

open. court. I didn't do a complete Monroe-Farrell inquiry, 

but I can tell you what I inquired of the defendant. And I 
can do tnat in open court. 

MS. BRYANT: Yes, Your Honor. And I will. I 
just didn't want you to think I was somehow being 

disrespectful. 
THE COURT: This is fine. 
MS. BRYANT: Thank you. 

10 

12 

13 

15 

17 

(Close ex parte bench conference) 

THE COURT: I'm just going to repeat what I did 

ex parte yesterday afternoon when I brought the defendant 

and both counsel up to the bench. I inquired of the 

defer dant as to whether or not he was aware when Mr. 

Rakofsky was retained that this would be Mr. Rakofsky's 

first trial. He said he was. I then inquired was he 

comfortable with Mr. Rakofsky remaining as his counsel in 

this case. And he said he was. And that ended the 

conversation. It was sort of an abbreviated Monroe-Farrell 

20 

21 

22 

inquiry which are typically done ex parte. 
MS. BRYANT: Correct, Your Honor, and I 

understand that, I understand why the Government was not at 

the bench. But I' ve been asked to put several things on 

the record about the representation of the defendant in 

this case. I' ve had an opportunity to speak with my 



uninvolved pa. rty without a dog in the fight, who could 

advise Mr. Deaner with respect to whether or not he really 

10 

wants -- with the level of experience involved here, really 
wants to proceed in this matter. 

That's what I' ve been. asked to tell the Court. 

We are not advocating as such. We are raising the issue 

for the Court's determinati. on. I want to make very, very 

clear that the Government is not taking a position on this 
but felt that at least it needed to be broached on record. 
And I' ll respect and defer to the Court's decision. 

THE COURT: Well, let me just say this: As I 

20 

23 

25 

said, the lawyers are retained in this case, and the Court 

has limited, I believe, authority in retained cases 
because, otherwise, we would be interfering with the 

defendant's constitutional right to have counsel of his 

choosing. And he has chosen these lawyers. And I did 

inquire of him yesterday, and I don't believe anything has 

changed in that regard. 
Now, the Court always retained supervisory 

authority over members of the Bar, inherent authority to 
supervise and regulate the conduct of the lawyers who are 

members of the Bar. And Mr. Rakofsky is appearing pro hac 

vice and has obviously agreed in that process to adhere to 
the ethical standards of the D. C. Bar. But there's no 

allegation here that Mr. Rakofsky or anybody associated 



with the defense has engaged in anything unethical or has 

violated any ethics or rules of conduct. And I haven' t 
found any quite frankly. My rulings yesterday concerned —— 

my rulings stand as they did, but I have not in any way, 

shape, or form found that Mr. Rakofsky or Mr. Grigsby 

engaged in unethical conduct. 

MS. BRYANT: And we' re not suggesting as much, 

Your Honor. I want to make that clear. I just wanted to 
make the record as I was asked to do before this Court. 

THE COURT: Now, the Court does occasionally 
appoint counsel, conflict counsel, to assess whether or not 

there's a -- independent counsel to determine whether or 
not there's a conflict of interest, and if there is, 
whether or not it could be -- need to be an explicit 

15 waiver. So 

(Pause) 

17 

18 

19 

THE COURT: Mr. Grigsby? Mr. Rakof sky? 

MR. RAKOFSKY: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: What's your response to the 

20 Government? 

22 

2 3 

25 

MR. RAKOFSKY: To the extent that it requires a 

response, you know, we feel just as Your Honor feels that 
nothing has changed, and if Your Honor would like to 
inquire, he should feel free. 

THE COURT: All right. The -- let's just wait a 



10 

second. 

{Pause) 

THE COURT: All right. I'm going to do a further 

inquiry up here at the bench of tne defendant in the 

absence of his counsel. 

{Ex parte bench conference) 

THE COURT: Good morning, sir. Mr. Deaner, 

you' ve heard all of this because we talked about this 
yesterday. 

10 THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

13 

15 

17 

20 

21 

THE COURT: And as I said, it's not the Court's 

intention to interfere with your right to have whoever you 

want as a lawyer. I know Mr. Rakofsky- was retained in this 
case, and he's the lawyer that you have chosen. My 

question to you a little bit more explicitly is this is not 

about hurt feelings, this is not about -- this is about the 

Court's concern of whether or not you have sufficiently 
experienced counsel to handle your case. 

Now, were you aware when he became -- beca. use he 

was not your original counsel. I believe it was Mr. 

Quillen. 

22 THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

23 

25 

THE COURT: When he became your counsel in this 
matter working with Mr. Grigsby, were you aware that this 
would be his first trial' ? 



THE DEFENDANT: Yes, that's the first thing I 
asked him. 

THE COURT: Okay. And, nonetheless, you were 

satisfied? 
THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

10 

12 

13 

THE COURT: Are you still satisfied? 
THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Now, I could get another lawyer to 
work with you and talk with you about that if you want. 

Basically have you -- not necessarily get you new counsel 
but get another lawyer to advise you about whether or not 
the level of experience that he has is something that. you 

feel comfortable with. 

THE DEFENDANT: You say you can get another 
15 lawyer to 

17 

18 
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THE COURT: Just to talk to. 
THE DEFENDANT: I don't feel there's no need. 

THE COURT: Okay. Are you sure about that? 
THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Okay. And are you satisfied with 

22 

23 

what he ' s done for you and the work that he ' s done for you? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Are you satisfied with the 
investigation that he's done in this particular case? 

25 THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 



12 

THE COURT: All right. Because if you' re not, I 
can get you another lawyer. Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: But the time to think about that is 
now. 

THE DEFENDANT: I'm fine. 
THE COURT: You want to stay with Mr. Rakofsky 

and Mr. Grigsby'? 

10 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 
THE COURT: All right. 

12 

15 

17 

19 
20 
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22 

(Close ex parte bench conference) 

THE COURT: I' ve again inquired of the defendant. 

I asked him explicitly whether he was satisfied with his 

lawyer. This is on the record, so this is not. under seal. 
But I inquired of him rather specifically. I said, were 

you aware of this when he was retained'? And he said, yes, 
that was the first question I asked him. I said that I 
could get another lawyer for him to advise him as to 
whether or not the level of experience was something that 
he felt comfortable with. He said he didn't want it. And 

I think any more pushing here is really interfere with his 

constitutional right to have a lawyer of his choosing. 

MS. BRYANT: I would agree with that, Your Honor, 

and I thank the Court for making a more precise record. 
25 THE COURT: All right. 



1 BY MR. RAKOFSKY: 

Q. Good morning, Mr. Rodriguez. Thank you for being 

here. 
A. Good morning. 

10 
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Q. The fi. rst. question I'd like to ask you, sir, is: 
You said that you saw Mr. Elliott get shot in the chest; is 
that right'? 

A. Yes. 

Q Thank you, sir. I'm sorry, I had to ask that. I 
didn't hear Ms. Bryant ask that question. 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Sir, have you -- do you spell your name -- let me 

rephrase -- Gilberto Ingles Rodriguez 

A. Yes. 

Q. -- is that your name'? 

A. Yes. 

17 Q. Thank you, sir. What about Burt Rodriguez, is 
that you also' ? 

A. Yeah. 

20 Q. Okay. Thank you. How about Gilberto Rodriguez, 

is that you'? 

A. Yes. 

25 

Q. How about Gilberto Ingles Rodriguez, is that you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How about For Dirty Rodriguez, is that you? 
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this particular witness because I'm trying to gauge which 

witnesses we' ll reach today and what is the necessity of 

Jencks and I don't know. 

MR. GRIGSBY: I believe there's a possibility we 

may need him for a little while longer. 
MS. BRYANT: I'm sorry? 
MR. GRIGSBY: There's a possibility we may need 

him for a little while longer. 
THE COURT: What does a little while longer mean? 

MR. GRIGSBY: Maybe a half hour. Unless we 

reserve the opportunity call him in our case; otherwise, 
I'd prefer to just get everything done. 

THE COURT: Okay. But there is a tendency here 

to be repetitive, so we need to make sure that we' re not 

going to be going over and asking the same questions over 

and over again. 
17 MR. GRIGSBY: I understand. 

THE COURT: All right. 2:30. 
19 (t, uncheon recess was taken) 

20 

21 

22 

23 
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P R 0 C E E D I N G S 

THE DEPUTY CLERK: Matter before the court at 
this time, United States versus Dontrell Deaner, case 

number 2008 CF1 30325. 

MS. BRYANT. "Finet Bryant on behalf of the. 

United States Government, good afternoon, Your Honor. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: 3oseph Rakofsky for Dontrell 

Deaner. 

MR. GRIGSBY: Sherl ock Gri gsby, al so, on behal f 
of Mr. Deaner, who is present. 

THE COURT: We' re waiting for a juror„ is that 
right'7 Yes. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: Your Honor, may we approach ex 

parte, please'P 

THE COURT: Yes. 

(Bench conference. ) 
MR. RAKOFSKY: Thanks. Dont. rell has been asking 

me -- wants me to ask questions for him and has been 

asking me to ask questions for him that I believe are very 

bad questions to ask. I will admit that he's been asking 

me for the whole day to ask these questions and I' ve just 
regularly said no to him. I had, you know -- I just -- I 
obviously want to do the right thing. 

I know for certain that there's a communication 

barrier between us right now, and I know for certain he' s 



not happy with the way this examination is going, and, yqu 

know, he's entitled to feel any way he wants. I feel I'm 

doing the very best job for him but if it's going to 

requ I re my asking h't s questl ons, 1 t s -- 1 t s — — I cannot 

do that. I believe his questions are bad questions. And 

I'm asking Your Honor, you know, I just don't think this 
can be reconciled and-- 

THE COURT: Well, has Mr. Grigsby talked to him? 

Have you talked to him& 

MR. RAKOFSKY: He doesn't really like 

Mr. Grigsby that much. 

THE COURT: Wel 1, I' ve asked him twice whether 

he was satisfied. The issue of -- and he needs to 

understand that certain questions, you know -- that have 

to be -- what do you mean by bad questions? 

MR. RAKOFSKY; Questions that I thi nk are going 

to ruin him and I cannot have that. 
THE COURT: If you need time to talk to him and 

to explain it to him, because sometimes it's very hard in 

the middle of examination to explain to him why it's a bad 

question, and if you want time to talk to him about that, 
you can go into the back and talk to him. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: Your Honor, respectfully, I think 

now might be a good time and -- I think it might be a good 

time for you to excuse me from trying this case. I think 



that -- I believe that I' ve worked very hard for him and I 

believe that -- I don't believe there is anybody who could 

have prepared for this case more diligently than I. But 

in light of -- this has been an unusual trial, and in 

light of this very serious barrier, I think now might be a 

good opportuni ty for 
THE COURT: We ' r e in the mi ddl e of tri al, 

jeopardy is attached. I can't sit here and excuse you 

f rom tlii s tri al . 

MR. RAKOFSKY: But. I'm trying to do this so that 

I mean, he's going to te! I you that he's very -- he 

doesn't trust me and I bet you i f you asked him, he will 

say that. 
THF COURT: Well, I asked him that this morning. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: In his defense, I don't think 

that this morning was enough time for him to appreciate 

the situation he is in. Only 24 hours have passed 

basi cally since the opening statement and I feel like, 

Your Honor, now just, you know, there's no-- 
THE COURT: I' ll ask him. I' ll voir dire him. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: Thank you very much. May he 

approach'? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

t. "Attorneys left. Defendant is present. ) 

Good afternoon, Mr. Deaner, 



THE DEFENDANT: Yeah . 
THE COURT: You wanted to address the Court' ? 

THE DE F ENDANT: Yeah . 
THE COURT: What do you want to address the 

10 

20 

Cou rt about? 

THE DEFENDANT: 3ust, after he did the 

cross-examination I learned, man, he, like, every question 

T. asked him to write down -- I write down for him to ask, 

he just won" t ask, you know what I'm saying7 And T. try to 
tell Mr. Grigsby, like he's just ignoring me. 

THE COURT: Okay. . Sometimes a question that you 

might want to ask could very well be very harmful to you 

in your case, and it's really a lawyer's judgment that-- 
that's why lawyers are trained to be able to make those 

type of decl sl ons. 

THE DEFENDANT: See, when I ask him, before I 
asked him I r efer to Mr. Sherlock, and he be like, yeah, 

that's a good question because we have evidence to back it 
up. And he just won't ask him. He just won't ask. And 

when I refer to sherlock, he say he just here just because 

3oseph can't be here by himself. So he's basically saying 

he can't make the decision, it's on 3oe, and I give it to 
him but he can't say nothing. I ike he approve of it, but 

he can't make the final decision because 3oe got to do it. 
THE COURT: And was ii the questions of this 



witness that you wanted to ask, not the other witnesses 

who have testified7 
THE DEFENDANT: No, it was just this one. 

THE COURT: Some of the questions that he may 

have wanted to ask, because he tried to ask and legally it 
couldn't be asked and so there was an objection. 

THE DEFENDANT: Well, those his own questions 

10 
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that he asked when he was objecting to. And I was trying 

to tell him like basically stick to the point, the 

questions that he was asking when he was asking stuff that 

really -- like you could see in my notes that I was 

writing on there, telling him the questions really that he 

ask really don't matter, for rea'1, you know what I'm 

saying? The case that we got. X knew the case because 

it's my case and the evidence and everything and just like 

he won't listen. 1 got the notes to show you and 

everything. 

THE COURT: Well„ I shouldn't look at those 

notes because those are personal and confidential notes 

between you and your lawyer and I shouldn't be seeing 

those. 1'm not disputing that you' ve asked him questions 

and he has sai d no. I'm not disputing what you' re saying. 

Alf I'm saying to you is that sometimes there is a 

difference between a lawyer -- a layman, like yourself, 

understanding of what should be asked and a lawyer's 



judgment of basically saying, i f I ask that, it's going go 

hur t. my cl i ent, it ' s going to hurt you. 

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, I know, that's why befor e 

I gave it to him I gave it to Sherlock and he said it was 

all right because we got evidence to back the question for 

when he answer it. He just won't a. sk it. 
THE COURT: And so what do you want the Court to 

do? 

THE DEFENDANT: See if I can get another lawyer. 

THE COURT: If I get another lawyer, it's going 

to have to start all over again and the only way I could 

get another lawyer is for you to ask me to get another 

lawyer, whi ch means that thi s trial is going to end and a 

mistrial will be declared and we'1 1 start all over agai n. 

You understand? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: All right. Can you step back. 

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, Your Honor. 

(End of bench conference. ) 
THE COURT: Mr. Rakofsky and Mr. Grigsby, please 

come forward. 

(Bench conference. ) 
He has requested new counsel, and from all other 

things he said, he's asking you questions to ask and that 

you have refused to ask them and he has said that 



Mr. Grigsby has, when he's shown them to -- I'm not 

telling you whether it's true or not, okay, I'm just 
tel ling you what he said -- that Mr. Grigsby says that 

there is good questions, we' ve got evidence to back them 

up„ but then when he shows them to you, you don't ask 

them, so. . . 
Again, I'm not talking about the veracity or the 

truth of that or what it has -- could very well be his 

perception of what's going on, but if I do appoint new 

counsel, we' re talking about a mistrial had and a waiver 

of any double-jeopardy c!aim that would happen to the 

defendant. And I told him that. So I'm not sure what I'm 

going to do right now. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: Is he willing to sign the waiver'? 

THE COURT: Of double jeopardy' 
MR. RAKOFSKY: Yeah . 
THE COURT: (3udge nodded. ) But I'm not sure 

whether I'm going to grant that or not. It just seems to 

me that -- all right. We' re just going to take a break 

here. I'm going to explain to Ms. Bryarrt what's gmng on. 

(End of bench conference. ) 
Ms. Bryant, the defendant has requested new 

counsel„ and there appears to be a conflict that has 

ari sen between counsel and the defendant. I have 

explained to him that if the Court does that, he wH7 be 
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waiving any double-jeopardy claim on a retrial. Xt will 

probably also involve his continued -- a delay in the new 

trial because new counsel would have to come in on this 
case„ learn the case, get discovery, do an investigation 

and it's not like we can do this -- just turn around and 

do a new trial next week. or next month. 

Do you understand that, Mr. Deaner? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: I can't decide this right now. But 

I'm leaning towards granting the request in light of alI 
the circumstances of this case as I see. So I don't know 

what the government's position -- it's really -- it 
doesn't really invo'1ve the government, the government 

doesn't need to take a positi on here, because I said, i t' s 

he that's asking for, quote, unquote, technically a 

mistrial and so there's really no double-jeopardy issue as 

far as the government is concerned. 

MS. BRYANT: The Court is not making findings at 
thi s 'ti me? 

THE COURT: No. 

MS. BRYANT: Then the government will reserve an 

opinion until the Court makes findings. 
THE COURT: Take a brief recess, 20 minutes. 

r'll te11 the jury that we' re being delayed. 

MS. BRYANT: Thank you. 



(Court in recess from 2:45 p. m, unti t 3:12 p. m, ) 
THE DEPUTY CLERK: Your Honor, recalling United 

States versus Dontrell Deaner, case number 2008 CF1 30325. 

MS. BRYANT: Finet Bryant on behalf of the 

United States government. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: joseph Rakofsky for Mr. Deaner. 

MR. . GRIGSBY: Sherlock Gri gsby for Mr. Deaner. 

THE COURT. "All right. Mr. Deaner is present. 

bIhen we adjourned just about 15 minutes or so 

ago, Mr. Deaner, you had requested that the Court provide 

a d1 fferent attorney for you; | s that r1 ght? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Now, we had -- you and I had a 

conversation yesterday about your lawyer; do you recall 
that. '? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT. * And then again today we had a 

conversation, earlier this morning about that as well, " do 

you remember that7 

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. 

THE COURT: Now, did that in any way influence 

your decision as to whether or not you want another 

lawyer7 

THE DEFENDANT: No. No, it didn' t. 
THE COURT: You understand that because you a. re 

10 



requesting a lawyer, if the court grants your request, the 

Court wi 1 1 decl are a mistrial, that i s thi s jury wi 1 1 be 

discharged and this case wil I at least, for the time 

being, end; you understand that'? 

THE DEFENDANT. "Yes 
THE COURT. "You understand that because you are 

aski ng for that to happen, that is to say you are asking 

for a mistrial, you' re waiving your right to doubte 

jeopardy; that is to say, you are waiving your right 
because -- to double jeopardy because the government will 

be able to prosecute you again. You understand? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. 

THE COURT: You also understand that if we do 

that, if x do grant a mistrial and the government elects 
to prosecute you for this again, it will probably result 
in your continued detention unt. il the case is resolved; do 

you understand? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Knowing that, do you still wish 

to -- for this Court to declare a mistrial and to grant 

you another lawyer? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Ms. Bryant, are there any questions 

you believe the Court needs to ask of' Mr. -- because I'm 

not going to rule today; I'm going to have him think about 



THE COURT: All right. So we' ll continue -- I'm 

going to send this jury home. Now, I' ve aIready told them 

that they' re not going to be here tomorrow because they 

are not sitting, so I assume that they' re going to make 

other plans, but I'm going to discharge thi s jury and send 

them home today. And if I grant the request, I' ll have 

them come in on Monday at 9:30 and send them home. 

THE DEPUTY CLERK: You don't want me to get 

their numbers and just cal! them tomorrow and tell them'7 

THE COURT: That's true, we can do that-. But I 
won't have an opportunity to thank them for thei r service. 

MS. BRYANT: As would I. 
THE DEPUTY CLERK: A11 right. 
THE COURT: All right. So we' ll see you in the 

morning, Mr. Deaner . 
(jury present. ) 

23 

You may be seated. Good afternoon, ladies and 

gentlemen. Ladies and gent!emen, we are stopping 

proceedings today and I'm going to be sending you home 

today, momentarily. Some legal issues have come up and 

it's going to be quite some time before we resolve those, 

so there's no sense in having you sit back there waiting 

for 45 minutes, an hour, hour and-a-half. So I'm going to 
send you home at th1 s 

time . 

The legaI issues that have come up may in fact. 
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result in you not coming in on Monday. What j: will -- if 
that is the case, what I will do is we will get 

identification from you, we wi ll cal I you tomorrow and let 

you know one way or the other so that you can make 

appropriate plans and not have to -- as l said, I try my 

best to keep the mystery out of this and not sort of 'like 

not tell you until the last minute or something. This is 
something that just came up this afternoon, and, as I 
said, I just don't think it's fair to have you sit back 

there for hours while we resolve those matters. 

And it makes absolutely no sense to have you 

come in on Monday as well if it's not going to be 

reso!ved. So have a good weekend. Have a good Friday. 

We planned on not sitting Friday, tomorrow, in any event, 

but I think if those issues are resolved, T. will be able 

to let you know. We will call you and Iet you know one 

way or the other if you' re needed on Monday. 

Thank you, and have a good afternoon. 

THE 3UROR: Did you want us to write our 

information down'7 

THE DEPUTY CLERI(: Yes, just put it in your 

notebooks. You can do it in the jury room. 

(3ury not present. ) 
THE coURT: so I will see you folks 9:30 

tomorrow morning. 



MS. BRYANT: Your Honor, just one question. I 
was under the impression the Court was going to tell them 

to return on Monday. If there is a deci sion where we are 

not going forward, I would just hate to leave them with 

the impression that somehow the government had done 

something to create a mistrial in thi s matter. I think 

that that's just kind of unfair. 
THE COURT: I don't think they have the -- I 

don't know how they could get that impression. 

Ms. BRYANT: we11„ I'd like to think that they 

wouldn't have that impressi on, but there was certainly 
thi ngs sai d that mi ght otherwise lead them to believe that 

there's ulterior motives here and I'd just hate to 'leave 

them with that impression. I wil! defer with the Court. 

I understand the Court's decision. I was just under the 

impression that the Court was going to bring them back. 

THE COURT: Well, it was my -- you know, this 
would not have been -- I mean, it. wou1d have been an easy 

issue if suddenly, you know, the jury was sitting 
tomorrow, but that was my concern in weighing that. But, 

you knox, also weighing the fact that they' re comi ng down 

here, you know, having to come down here and -- when they 

could make other plans and the cost to them of that. 
MS. BRYANT: Yes, Your Honor, I mean, I 

understand. 



THE COURT: I just don't think it's fair to have 

14 people come down here, because if they come down here 

in the morning, at least thei r morning is shot and people 

are maki ng chi Id care arrangements and all ki nds of thi ngs 

that they don't otherwise need to do. 

MS. BRYANT: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: I do know some of the jurors have 

10 

13 

young kids. And that was just because I overheard a 

hallway conversation of them taIking to their young kids 

on the phone, and so I a. ssume that they' re -- so that' s 

the major consideration. 
MS. BRYANT. "Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. So we' ll return tomorrow 

at 9. "30. 
(Proceedings concluded at 3:22 p. m. ) 
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P-R-0-C-E-E-D- T. -H-9-8 
DEPUTY CLERK: The matter before the Court at 

this time, United States versus Dontrell Deaner, 
2008-CF1-30325. 

MS. BRYANT: Vinet Bryant on behalf of the 
United States Government. Good morning, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Good morning. 

MR. GRIGSBY: Good. morning, your Honor. 

Sherlock Grigsby on behalf of Mr. Deaner. 
THE COURT: Good morning. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: Joseph Rakofsky for Dontrell 
Deaner. Good morning. 

THE COURT: Good morning. 

(Defendant present. ) 

THE COURT: Goad mor. ning, Mr. Deaner. 
DEFENDANT: Good morning. 

THE COURT: Mr. Deaner, when we adjourned 
yesterday -- right before we adjourned yesterday, you 

said that you wanted. a new lawyer in this particular 
case, and we had -- I had explained to you that if I 
did give you a new lawyer, we would have to abort. the 
trial, let's say. We will have to dismiss the jury. I 
also explained to you that the Government would be able 
to prosecute you again for these charges. And you said. 
you understood that, but you still, nonetheless, wanted 



another lawyer. 
I also explained to you that it could probably 

result, more than likely, in your continued detention 

until this case is actually — — the other — — the case is 
tried. And you said you. understood that. And I asked 

you to think about it overnight. 
Have you had an opportunity to think about that? 
DEFENDANT: Yes. 
THE COURT: And is it your desire to have a new 

lawyer? 
DEPENDANT: Yes. 
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THE COURT: Let me say tha. t this arose in the 

context of counsel, Nr. Rakofsky, approaching the bench 

and indicating that there was a conflict that had 

arisen between he and Nr. Deaner. Mr. Deaner, when I 
acquired of him, indicated that there was, indeed, a 

conflict between he and Nr. Rakofsky. Nr. Rakofsky 

actually asked to withdraw mid-trial and appeared 

and according to Nr. Deaner, there wa. s a conflict as 

well between local counsel, Mr. Grigsby's legal advice 

and Nr. Rakofsky's legal advice. 
I must say that even when I acquired of 

Mr. Deaner, I — - as to whether or not, when the Court 

found out through opening, at least near the end of the 

opening statement, which went on at some length for 
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over an hour, that Nr. Rakofsky had never tried. a case 
before. And, quite frankly, it wa. s evident, in the 
portions of the trial that I saw, that Nr. Rakofsky 

put it this way: 1 was astcnished that someone would 

purport to represent someone in a felony murder case 
who had never tried a case before and that local 
counsel, Nr. Grigsby, was complicit in this. 

It appeared to the Court that there were 

theories out there -- defense theories out there, but 

the inability to execute those theories. It was 

apparent to the Court that there was a -- not a good 

grasp of legal principles and legal procedure of what 

was admissible and what was not admissible that inured„ 
I think, to the detriment of Nr. Deaner. And had there 
been -- If there had been a conviction in this case, 
based on what 1 had seen so far, I would have granted a 

motion for a new trial under 23. 110. 
So I am going to grant Nr. Deaner's request for 

new counsel. I believe both -- it is a choice that he 

has kncwingly and intelligently made and he has 

understood that it's a waiver of his rights. 
Alternatively, I would find that they are based on my 

observation of the conduct of the trial manifest 
necessity. I believe that the performance was below 

what any reasonable person could expect in a murder 



trial. 
So I'm going to grant the motion for new trial. 

And I must say that just this morning, as I said, when 

all else, I think, is going on in this courtroom, I 
received a motion from an investigator in this case who 

attached an e-mail in this case from Mr. Rakofsky to 
the investigator. I, quite frankly, don't know what to 
do with this because it contains an allegation by the 

investigator about what Mr. Rakofsky was asking the 

investigator to do in this case. 
So that's where we are. And I' ll figure out 

what to do about that case. But it just seems to me 

that -- so, I believe that based on my observations 

and, as I said, not just the fact that lead counsel had 

not tried a case before; any case. It wasn't his first 
murder trial; it was his first trial. And I think that 
the -- As I said, it became readily apparent that the 

performance was not up to par under any reasonable 
standard of competence under the Sixth Amendment. 

So I'm going to grant the motion. We' ll set 
this over -- Do you want to retain a lawyer, another 

lawyer or do you want me to appoint you another lawyer? 

DEFENDANT: I don't understand the question. 
THE COURT. If you cannot afford a lawyer, I 

will appoint you a lawyer. 



DEFENDANT: Okay. 

THE COURT: There are same good, competent 

lawyers wha have tried these cases before. 
DEFENDANT: Yeah. I wauld like far you to do 

that. 
THE COURT: Okay. So what I'm going to da is 

I'm going to have you came back next Friday, and. I' ll 
appoint a lawyer, in the mea~time, and they will get an 

opportunity to go over and see you at the jail. 
DEFEMDANT: Okay. 

THE COUR~: All right. 
NS. BRYANT: That completes our matters before 

the Court, your Honar. Nay 1 be excused'2 

THE COURT: Yes. 
NS. BRYANT: Thank you. 
THE COURT: You might want to take a look at 

this pleading. 
NS. BRYANT: I was, actually, going to ask, but 

I dan't know if I 
THE COURT: Nr . Grigsby and Nr. Rakafsky. 
NS. BRYANT: Nay we have copies'P 
THE COURT: I dan't know what to da with it. I 

don't knaw whether yau shauld see it ar not. 
NS. BRYANT; Okay. Nell, I' ll accept the 

Court's 



THE COURT: There's an e-mail from you to the 

investigator that you may want to look at, 
Mr. Rakof sky. It raises ethical issues. 

That's my only copy. 

8 
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MR. CRIGSBY: Your Honor, I was just going to 
look out here and then bring it back, your Honor. 

MR. RAKOFSKY: Your Honor, is that something you 

wanted to discuss' 
THE COURT: No. But you might want to discuss 

it with somebody else. 
MS. BRYANT: Your Honor, that was filed in the 

court? 
THE COURT: It was delivered to Judge Leibovitz 

this morning. She sent it over to me because this case 
was originally Judge Leibovitz's. 

(The proceedings adjourned at. 9:55 a. m. ) 

19 
20 

21 

23 

25 



12 

15 

CERT I F I CATE OF REPORTER 

I, NARGARY F. ROGERS, an Official Court 

Reporter for the Superior Court of the District of 
Columbia. , do hereby certify that I reported by machine 

shorthand, in. my official capacity, the proceedings had 

and testimony adduced, upon the Jury Trial in the case 
of the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA v. DONTREXI DEANER, 

Cx~nal Action No. 2008-CFX-30325 in said Court on the 
1st day of April, 2011. 

I further certify that the foregoing 7 pages 
constitute the official transcript of said proceedings, 
as taken from said shorthand notes, my computer 

realtime display, together with the audio sync and tape 
recording of said proceedings. 

In witness whereof, I have hereto subscribed. 

my name, this 12th day of April, 2011. 

22 

25 





Never Tnerj 6 

! vga'w, BbBjoLIrri3Lcort1': I . '. " ' =' . = 3, ''v ' ', vl!' 

rs g CNN. con! — Breakin. . . 
«ssrc6 sLsi-!!rn«l c~ni. I 

fu~ti;& 

: —, Debra Cassens t!'!/eiss 

I 
E&nail lal i nnt 

I 
'& 

I 
Reprints Q Share y Save 

TH0h/i. Ci!I R!, I, ITI n'. . 

t'few Jerse"' laivyer Joseph Ral Gfsh;~ appeared pleased In 3 Facebooh post after a Vashington, D C, judge 
de!Glared 3 mistrial due to the defense lawyer's trial performance 

"1st-Degree Murder. . f;llSTRI-'. Li"' Rakofshv vvrote. acr;ording to the tVashington City Paper. . =, even of his 

fnends indicated they liked the status update EIut in an inter/Ievv vilth the publication, Rako!fels admitted he 

~!vas ihumiliated' by a press account of the proceeding. 

Rahofsky had confessed to jurors weighing the fate of arcused murderer Dc!ntrell Deaner that he had never 

tried 3 case before, accc!rdlng to an accotlnt by the Vyashlngtori Post JLidge tVfllianl J3cl'son O'Ited that 

Inexperience in declaring 3 mistrial on Friiday, sa. , ing tihe lawyer didnut have 3 good grasp of tnal 

procedures The judge ruled after reviewing a motion by an investigator claiming Rah, ofsky suggested he 
trich, . ' 3 vyitness. 

!":6T p, ""c 

3. Vias La!eyer's Rhymed Dec 23 Riff on lliight 
Before Xmas an Ethics ')Iolatlon & Appealls 
Court ', Vill Rule 

2 Cooley's flic»v Flonda Law School Enrolls 
1U4 Students, Exceeding EApectatlolls 

-. Stand and Deliver. Tips on Trying Your First 
Case 



FE N 

CD 

IC) 
Cu 

2 
C) 

Cl 
Cd 

m 

Q! 

V) 

CD 
Vi 

(D 

M 

(D 

Q3 

IC3 

CD 

Q) 

la 
Cu 

C' 

(b 
(fl 

(P 
CP 

I Pt 

LJ 

il 
u) 
I J 

CX 

CI 

Cd 

V) 

CD 

C1 

h I 

(O 

Cu 
CJ. 

G3 

rl 
(bi 

Q) 

ip 

(Tl 

C) 
CJ 

Cd 
I! 

Cl 

(D 

Cl. 

fn T! 
ITJ 

Cd 

Tl 

fb 
Cu 

(u 

IQ 

(D 

G) 

fr) 2 
I"d 

GP 
:1- 

A 
U 

G) 

Kt 
~ DL 

M O 

f V) 
CP 

FT) 

rJ 

I 

ICI 

Q 

CJ n 

r. n 
I 

f73' 

FD 

m 

(D 
I, I 
Cd 

Cl 

L1. 

O 

Ql 

ml 

l)3 
\T3 

rb 

FP 

Cdl 

"v 
I. 

C) 
I 

C3 

I 
Cil 
ICI 
(D 

9= 
(D 

G) 
M 

Cn 
Q! 

IQ 
Q 

(D 

Q 

CI CD 
Cd 

CD 

(I I 
Cd ib 
IJ) 

(O 

Cd 

IT 

ID 

Cd 
ITt 
CL'I 

t;D 

ro 
(t 

ITI 

2 
ti p 

Cd 

Q 
V) 

Kl 
\ 3 
Cd 
I', O 
ITI 
Ui 

e la 
CL 

Vi 

ll) 

VJ 

IT. 

IT& 

Cd 

(fl 

(D 

G3 
Ii) 

CL 
Fi 

Cbt 

ITJ 

ITJ 

I-I 
Cp 

Ql 

CL 
Q 

IJ) 

Cu 
i t 

( I 
CLI 
rel 
fr p 
FFI 

Q) 

Q 
Cn 

G) 

Ql 
Cb 

C3 

3 3 

Q 
GJ 

OE 
CJ 

ta 
CI 

fal 
F r 

Cd 

f L 

n 
Q) 

I 

CD 

Cd 

CL3 

I, \ 

CD 

(D 

I 
ID 
bl 
(T) 

rb 
r. n 
QI 

Lu 

Cd 

D 
f T3 
CJ 

Vl 
Q 
Q 9 
(D 

I 
Cb 
I, I n 

I'D 
' 3 

ID 

ml 

C1 

IQ 
Cu 

IT3 
M 
ITt 

G) 

I I 

(O 
71 

rbi 

h 3 

Q) I 

(Fi 

(O 
111 

Cd 

3 

Cx 

(a 
G) 
U) 

I pl 

Q! 
M 

IC) Q) 

D 
Q 
M r. n 

lt 
G) 
(3 
f 
f 

(p 

CD 

Gl 

rl c~ 
ltl 
G) 

m 
I 

CP 

=, 3 
m g 
(D 
Q) 

(LJ 

m 
Cd 

rb 

Q3 
(O 

I, 
Ci 

Cu 

VJ 
(O 

Q 
I 3 
ID 

ftni 

(D 

CL 

Q) 

(b 
I 

ITJ 

il) 

ICQ 

G3 

Cd 

(p 
f. fl 

G3 

I, 3 

Gl 

(Q 
73 
Cu 

3 

rn 

(O 

(Q 
(p 
ro 
(~D 

LJ 

(D 

(p (t 

CD Q3 
(O 

rf ITJ 
(tt 

CD a 
ib 

iA 
G3 

QL 

IQ3 
fn 

Cd 

Q) 

& Q 

O) 

(D 

IQ 
Q' 

(Fi 
IT) 

IQ 
n 

Q fj 
(O 

Q3 

Cd LJ 
(CJ 

Q) Itl 
Cd 

(C) 
Ql 
Q Cd 
CL 

( 

Q Q 

FDJ 

Cd 

g~ 

Ol 
FE 

eu 
n 
C) Q 

ed) 

o 

Fl 

' LI 

3 ' 

m 

O3 

) ~ 

a 

(O 

I 
Q! 

CJD 

L3 ri 

CDI 

Q! 

7E f(D 

I 

vd 
, e 

CD . 1= — T) CC) 
ft , 1- 

m n 
htt n (Q 

ml wm ~ hp 
UQ oo 
G3 — (Tt 
Cd m ='. 

frn ri 

Q 
f3 3 rj ~ G3 

I — G) 
(O iA 

Q! 

Cd 

OD 

I 

hp 

rpl 
U Ci = D! rti 

m O 
III Q ~ G3 

Ql 
3 

h Oj 

f! I 

IP 
f. fi 

I C)P - ffl 
CII — ' 

a 
(D 

(b 
fb 

g L3. 
(D iD 

Oi rfiai =C Cu— 
Lfl 

~ (t'I hp C) 

ttt Q 
(3(t 

rl) 

G) 

(P 
G3 

Ifb 

'Tl 

m 
Q) 

G3 

(D 

V a 
r. n 

ib 
Q) 

CTI 

CL itt c~ 
(D Q) 
ITJ 

Q. — 
I 

CD KI 
Q! 

0 
Q\ 

hl) 

V) 

OE 
ta 

CD 
CD TI 

3-- ITI 

ICD 2 
IL) hpb 
Cd V) 

tn(J 
lnd Q'u 
(p 
h 

m 3= 
C1 IQ 

83 r(fl 

ITI 

'Q C) nU 
Q A— 

+ C(t 
r. o 

A CJO 

G) Cd (O 
m LW 

CL 

D 
ltt 

(D 

QI 

ti J 

Cl 

"l 
CO 

~nA 
Cm I I 

CD (p 
M 

f(O 

lTI Ti 

m Q. ~ Q3 

~'I 
ITI 
E( CD 

I I 

CJ 

I-3 ITI 

M nt I I 

If O 



P 



I a»vr' g o ' p I I e rr. = 

Home» ffevrrs 

Around the Blawgosphere: Joseph Rakofsky Soun 
Off; Client Poachers; and )he End of Blawg Review 

' 

f . I ":. ' I ' ' » I r. I I " I r I I: r! 

Ij Eivaafl L@I Print 
I oI Repnnts 

Updated: If an. , thing had the legal blogrsphere going this»veek, itvvas Joseph 
RakOfeky, a relatrvely rerent la»V grad IVhI3Se pOOr tnal pert'OrmanCe aS 
defense counsel in a murder trial prompted the ]udge to declare a naistrial last 
Fflda»' I! I ', S i P. F=r C 

THA&a'(I!N PFIITI f» "» 

Ral ofsl'iy admitted during a rambling opening statement that this n3urder 
defense case vas his first murder case. Brett Clari, at JDs Rising nc!ted 
Ral'ofsl-y!!vas in a similar situation to r', . I'I' crlfsfnI '»'Infr'I» Garnbini, minus 
Gambini's "Ivlarfsa Tromef-e . que fiancee there to save the da, ' 

Irtany bloggers savv the Rai;ofsky debacle as a consequence of vvhat tllsey see 
a . an increased emphasis on marl;eting leven ifit stretches thle trutil&I Iffthout a parallel focus on wc!rk 
produl t 

1. Ethics Cof33pllaint ~gainst Ex-PD includes 
Allegation She Used the S-P»ord ln ' ourt 

2. Stand and Deliver. Tips on Trying Your First 
Case 
Don't Give It ~way: Value D!oe;n't i»lean 
Cheap nr Free 

~I ~, s To p Leaders J o I n Ir'»f I n s tel f I Sr S I f a v»fn a n d 
O'I»1elveny, the Ccllllapse of Devvey rvv 

Le Bc euf -"„p pe ars Imminent 
'. " ashington D. C Jamison Koehler at Koehler Lavf was the first to picl up on the story and ch eel:ed out 
Ral'fofsirys v»febsfte backwhen ft vvas still online. Koehler said Raf ofsf'y tated 'on hlis 't»'ebslte 'that he 
I, !tery!'ef;ed at a weil-respected investment bank w'fth branches alii over the!vorld ' Enl!phasis added. , 

'I"' l»larl; 

5 I. "Ias La»vyers Rhymed Dec 23 Riff on 'Night 
Before Xmas' an Ethics 'vtotatfonP appeals 
Court '"'ill Rl. l'le 

Cooler's I»llew Florida Lav School Enrolls 
~ ~ t » ~ 



tango ph:re 

, ' »~'«"»yvli»JcabBJoUI'Ilgt. cofll 'I::". ", . ':. '. lc 3I'l t, '', I 

' u 3 i . ', 'c i 
' -, , ''I= ";-', , = - "- ~', 'y, oti i . . ; ', , -, 'k» I'=' ' 

ry + CNN. ccIrn — Breakif». . . 
c 

Rah:ofsh-i'3 website back vviben it »vas still online. II';achier said Rahafsk, stated 'on his vvebsite that he 
'triteA Ieived at a well-respected investment banlc vvith branches all over the world ' Einlphasis added 'I" I' larl. 
Bennett at Defending People grabb d a, cre n shot cf the web ite, complete with "fraudulent trustworthy 
grey-I'lalred 13vy ref pictLlfes ' 

Cnrninal IDefense blogger Brian Tannebaum vvas at the Legal t, . larketei's -'. Ssaciattan. -", nnuat Conference oii 

fylonday, when Interest in the stoiy peah. :ed and he was disappointed that no speah. :ers reacted to tt 'The 
marheiers tookthe app»rtunity. Gln a day vvhele their advic, and strategies were the taill' afthe internet. ta say 
nothing. Ever thing about marl, eting nlust remain posttl. e, nothing critical, nothing negative. Just pay the 
cash and get clients. They dan t vvorri~ about hour ethics, and don't want yau vvarried about theirs ' 

At Simple Justice, Scott Greenfield thought it v/as II(!Atc th3t Ju t days after the Rahofsl. , ' story brol'e. Jay 
Shepherd's coluAln "Six Steps tc Beconling an Expert" ran at Abcve the Lavv The six. points, in the 
abligatai; li . tformatfavored by Alarl'eters tr ingto sell siillptetons vnn a case. get some ink, do a CLE, 
vyrite an article, help your colleague-, and repeat 

I I 

Before, . 'rnas' ari EttIics»yiiotatian". Appeals 
Court '. "ill Rule 

6. Coole'r"s Nevv Florida Law School Eni'allis 
l04 Students, Exceeding Expectations 

7. t. lore Than Half of Bias Plaintiffs in ABF 
'tud; Deenled Their Law». er, Incompetent 

B. Ex-Partner Blanles Legal Recruiters, 
Excessive Pa; Guarantees. . -'. ngry 
Colleague=- far Devvey's Liov»nfall 

9. Ex-Dewe;1'ice Chair Sa;s Firm D»ves Him 
SIS1, lrt; Se Cr Bta rice Tald Cif I ayaffS, 

'This is the modern path to success in the law, Just lie»aur butt off to B. erybod. » who v. ill iisten. feign 
expertise you don t have and see how many faal=- v ill let you slide In alano the vva', "' Greenfieild v rate 
"COVer up the dead badieS Of your inCampetenCe and;Vhen yau get luChj, pranlote thr. hell Ou't Gtyaureelf 
if you're the real thing. 

I', 'Iaxwell Kennerly at Litigation 8 Trial and Blonde Justice wonder if client Dontrelll Deanler had an 
experienced public defender an his case before the decision vvas made to hire Rakcifsicy The ancnynlous 
IBlonde Justice. who says, she is a public defender, v rite:-. I see SGA16thlng sli IIII af sanletlilles IA I finlina 
tcauit, too. :ainetimes 3 private Iavyer will came iil the couftraonl and say something lilte 'I' ve never done a 
criminal case before, haw do l. a" Dn one hand, everyone has to start with sainething, e: Bryctne was ne»v 
ance On the ather hand. I can Just picture their cllient thinl ing, 'I nl so glad Aly family pooled theiii money 'fo 

thi . real IBI:, yerv~ho is sa Al»ich better than that pabtic afetehlcteri had befcre. ' I'leanwhile. their lav»» eris 
ashlflg Ale haw ta da the Jab 

Not Guilty repaited that IA'ashingtan, D C. Ilawyer David Benovvttz Is going ta be appointed ail this case. 
Benowil Is 3 home grawn (meaning ltrained by D. C Public Defend r Servi es'l lawyer»vlth vvetl over a 
dozen ye3I's af strictly cnminal defense experience under his belt. ' writes t'lot Guilt'y blagaef llllfflafTl SB'dcflq 

vvho says she is af counsel to Benowit's firm. Seddiq allso revisited Rahafsh& again today in a post large)» 
llocused on Susan Prentice-Saa. a t»lichigan crinlinal defense lahyel accused aflneffectlvc as Istanl 3 by' 

ithe prcsecutor opposing her 

ROt ttlB I BS( PIIr3V/g Revle'»~V 

Last Fnday, APril Fool'3 Da;. George Iyt '. y, 'altace hasted Blawg Revie v~. 'I35 at his btavvg, 3 fcol in the 
fai est For those unfamiliar: Cn 3 weel ly basis far the past six years, l3w tile'ggers have tal en turns 
"hosting" Blavvg Revievr an their oyvn blawgs by vvay of v, riting 3 post rounding up interesting posts on other 
blawgs that vveek. A reader could alyvays find the weelrs hast at the Blavvg Revievv blog Havvever, the site's 
April 1 post rand the April I tvveetfranl the mysterious 'Ed" I inrJicated Blawg Re ie»vis gone for good 'Ed 

» The Righthaven 
8A, '. . ' . ' '. . . ', ' Exfyerlment: A Jcurnalist 

SQ~~/$ WOnIIPISI|BCOllYUIghtTPoli 
Ke&Ãee 'V»ras Right to Sue Hifn 

»»virer 
»» ro»yM 
By'-("»ytpdgtH 
rrnkiy a 

~ ~ ~ 



lavrgosphere 

I vhVVrrVV@L1~QJ OLInriaL( On1 ' ' ie, 1 ', =. '. L, ', =, '1!, , I. . . 
' „, ', ', ', ', : t . ; ' 

, ';=; =, '„', = '= ': 
i ! I I'! ', ' i t I 

' ' '' ':"-'. O 
' '-, . ; r & 

c' g CNN. corn - BreakIn. . . 

t Jot the Last Blav&g Review 
ILast Fndav. AprII Fool's Day, George I!I. '". Vallace hosted Hlawg R:vied! "„'05 at his bllawg, 3 foci in the 
forest For those unfamiliar: On a v eel. ly basis for the past SI~ year. "-, 

, la! bloggers have tal:en turn. =- 

'hostlng BIIavrg RevIew Gn their own blavvgs by vvay ofwrltlng a post rounding up Interesting post on c!ther 
blawgs thai!veek. breeder could al&hiays flndihe weel', 's host at the Blawg Review blog. Hovvever, the site'6 
April' post land%he April 1 tweet from the A1!!stenous Ei. '"! In!dicated Hlawg Review is gone for gocd "Ed 
did not return the AHA loumal's email seel:Ing comn1ent about Blawg Revlevv's status in the vreelc after the 
armour!Cement But or! "pril I1, 3 post announced'the bl!Gg's sl~-year annI'. Brsany 3nd sollcitecf future hclsts 

Client Poacher: 
. -', t I". tyshingie. corn this week, Carolyn Elefant nc!tes that this week she spent a da& and 3 few hundred 
dollars to go to an industry conference this week with the primary ain1 Gf preventing other lawyer -, fr!'m 
poacll1ing"' 3 client of hers who was also attending -'. nd her concerns weren t unfounded, she said "Even 

with my overslghli, at least one consultant n1ade an overt, bra:en pla, fc!r my clIent as I stood by 
' She adds 

that she's been poached once or twice In the past 

I'I — easy' t'o f3il inta complacenc'I and assume that if you treat clients ~Yell 3nd plovide evceptlonal 
representation, they Yvon't look elseyvhere. ' Elefant»vrote. Hut "most poachers ~vill pron1I-e — nay, even 
guarantee your client the Impossible lc!wer fees, added e~perhse and 3 supenor outcome. You can' t 
con1pB'IB with 3 f3A'I3sy l3w('BI IA A1y recent sl'ILI3tlon, I vvltnessed the poa" her n13klng pl Gnilses foI money 
3nd IesLII'Is that he coulcl no'I possibly dellvBI. 

UGQ'afed Apf7I y ' Iviih iniornraf!OA tI!3! ByaII g Rev!'BIV ia Daok oti. 
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Related Topics 
(a'. BlavvgWhisperer, Crirninall Justice, Lavv Firms, Solosismall Firms POLL 

Hotiv ITIBIt'v! pll 6 bono hoLIf 5 leave 
yoLI v, 'olked in the last 'l 2 months% 

Glenn Stephens 
Apr 8, 2IJ1'I 4'38 PM CDT 

On Rakofsl1; 

' il!lone. 

Fevver than 5g 

59 Gl' A1GIB 

Touro Law Bchool7 Isn t Tc!uro a tractor company~ They have 3 law school: 

=, erloLIsly, which Is mol'6 ITIGraily questIonabIB and professlonallly ~ LI" pect'' Flghtlr1g 'IhB good flgi1t 
poorly like Ral;cfsl;. y'". Ol fighting the bad fightvvell ill;e so n!any lavvyers ~ 
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Joseph Rakofsky. Esquire 
888 Eighth Avenue, Apt. 3-0 
New Yorlc, N. Y. 10019 

Re: Rakofslcy/'l3ar Counsel 
Bar Docket No. "011-D188 

Dear Mr. Rakofsky: 

In 2010 ~ ou were engaged to i. epresent Dontrell Deaner in a felony murder 
case that was being prosecuted in the District of Columbia. You were and are l10't 

a member of the D. C. Bar. On May 26, 2010, 1 ou Yvere adn1itted io ihe D. C. Bat 
pt o littc vice for the purpose of representing Mr, Deaner. 

Vvre opened this matter because of media ieports that the trial judge, who 
eventually granted a mistrial in the case against Mr. Deaner, was highly critical of 
your performance. After investigation v e have concluc1ed thai your performance 
displayed problems associaied with a nev' lav yer trying his first case. but we have 
not concluded that it was so deficient as to violate the competency standards set 
forth in Rule 1. 1 of the District of Columbia Rules of Professional Responsibility 
It is clear that you worked many hours on!YIr. Deaner's case and that you did 
your best io defend your client. It is also cleai' thilt YOL11 gl'asp of the rules of 
evidence and of criminal procedure was inadequate. V, 'hile v«e find this to be a 
close case v'e have concluded that. there is not clear and convincing evidence that 
you violated Rule 1. 1. Accordingly. we are dismissing this matter. 

S incei el y, 

i 

e. . re' st y" 

I Iail'lllto11 P. Fox, III 
Assistant Bar Counsel 

HPF:act 

1 Zi gtls 5snret ZVW, Br!i Iev'insect, Rortttt ZZ7, II'letJZstsvntort, DC2000Z: —: 202-638-Z50Z, FAJ'202-638-086 





From: Adrian Bean &bo znhoodinvesti ations ahoo. com& 
Date: Wed, 16 Mar 2011 13:14:47 -0700 (PDT) 
To: &triallaw erusa mail com& 
Subject: Payment for Investigative Services Rendered: U. S. v. Dontrell Deaner 

To: Mr. Joseph Rakofsky, 
Attorney at Law 

From: Adrian K. Bean, Investigator 

I am writing to inform you that a letter and an Invoice for investigative services 
rendered in the Dontrell Deaner case were recently delivered to the office of your 
co-counsel, Sherlock Grigsby. As l informed Mr. Grigsby, the deadline for 
payment on that Invoice is by the close of business on Thursday March 17, 
2011. Please contact Mr. Grigsby for the details. 

Since I was never given a reason for my dismissal as the investigator in this 
case, and since the Client appeared pleased with my services, I can only 
conclude that my refusal to engage in the unethical and possibly illegal conduct 
requested in your e-mail of October 6, 2010 ("trick Leigh {old lady into. . . . ))" is the 
reason for my exit. 

Please be advised that if the payment requested on the Invoice is not made 
by tomorrow, I intend to immediately file a Motion with the Court to seek 
compensation. I further intend to submit my entire investigative file, -including 
your October 6th e-mail, as an attachment to that Motion. To avoid the time- 
consuming and troublesome Court intervention in this matter, I would 
respectfully request the appropriate compensation for my services. Please 
respond by e-mail to the above address. 

Your assistance in this matter would be appreciated. 
AKB 

{March 16) 

Adrian, 

You repeatedly lied to us and did absolutely no work for us. You may have watched the video 
footage, but that was not the assignment. I feel that yoLr are not entitted to anything, at all. 
However, Mr. Grigsby believes you should at least be paid something. I completely disagree with 
him, but I am willing to consider paying you something for your incredible ineptitude — it's been a 
long time since I' ve seen a person as ineffective and dishonest as you. We will agree that you be 
paid $150 from the voucher, but no more. If you ile what you need to file and I will dq 
the same. If you agree to the $150, you will be nd we each move on with our iives. 

You have no idea how kind Mr. Grigsby has be this matter. If it were only up to me, 



you would be guaranteed no- payment whatsoever, a licensing hearing- and criminal charges. 

Joseph 

Sent from my Verizon Vvireless BlackBerry 

--- — --- Original Message ------— 
Subject: Payment for Investigative Services: U. S. v. Dontrell Deaner 
From-: Adrian Bean &bo znhoodinvesti ations ahoo. com& 
Date: Mon, February 14, 2011 2:46 pm 
To: sherlock the ri sb firm. com 

TO: Mr. Sherlock V. Grigsby, 
Attorney At Law 

This is to confirm that I delivered a copy of my Investigative Report for the 
above-referenced- case to your office on Thursday February 10, 2011 A 
copy was also delivered to Mr. Deaner. 

Please contact me by e-mail on or before Friday February 18, 
2011 regarding compensation for my services. Specifically, I would like to be 
informed as to the method of payment for these services (CJA Voucher or 
Private Invoice). I would respectfully request that either a payment be made 
(Invoice) or a Voucher provided to me (CJA) by the following Friday February 
25, 2011. 

lt is my hope that this matter can be resolved without Court intervention. If it 
cannot be, I will have no choice but to file a petition for payment by submitting my 
case files and all correspondence in this matter to the Court. 

Your response in this matter would be appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

Adrian K. Bean 

(February 16) 
Mr. Bean, 

Can you please submit an itemized list of all work performed as well as the date and 
time it was performed. 



Also, I never received a response to my previous email regarding the- reimbursement 
orr the other case. Ptease let rrre knor)rr r)vherr to- expect this, so tirat I- rrray- inform my 
client. Thank you for your prompt attention to these matters. 

Sherlock Grigsby 
Attorney at Law 
601 Pennsylvania Ave, NW Suite 900 
Washington, DC 20004 

(October 6, 2010} 
Adrian, 

Thanks for helping. 

1) Please trio~ (oid lady) into admitting: 

a) she told the 2 lawyers that she did not see the shooting and 

b) she told 2 lawyers she did not provide the Government any information about shooting. ) This 
happened a couple of months ago. 

2) Canvas neighborhood for witnesses 

3) Surveillance camera is triggered by a device that is activated by sound. 

Get information regarding: 
A) how surveillance camera was installed — this was described to us as a big production 
B) how it is supposed to work 
C) how it actually works 
D) what deficiencies exist 
E) where are our opportunities to argue either misconduct or human error 

4) we will provide you with a script of questions to ask Lacey, our witness. This must be 
videotaped. I or Sherlock wili probably be with you when this needs to take place. 

Thank you. 

Joseph 
917 319 2699 
Sent from my Verizon Wireless BlackBerry 

(October 18, 2010) 
Adrian, 

Let's talk on VVed to discuss what you' ve accomplished so far. 
Thank you. 



Joseph 

Sent from my Verizon Wireless BlackBerry 

(November 2, 2010) 

Adrian, 
Have you made any progress? Call me this week to discuss what you' ve 
accomplished. 

Joseph 

(November 4, 2010) 
Adrian, 

Thanks for helping us. I' ve decided that I'm going to use a different 
P. l. Sherlock Grigsby requested that I stick with you, but I found 
someone else that works better for me. 

Make contact with Sheriock to get paid (if you haven't already); he is 
more familiar with the voucher system than I. Thank you for your 
efforts. 

Joseph 
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Pzoceed1 rgs 

THE COURT: Good afternoon. 

Th's is a motion by the American Bar Associatior 

to hold the pla. 'ntiffs responsible for payment of legal 

f es pursuant to CPLR 8303-a and the New York Court Rules 

13 0 et seer. 

Counsel, your motion 

MR . HABZI S: Th ank you, you Honor 

Mark Harris, P oskauer Rose for tne American Bar 

dissociation, Zebra Cassens gneiss and Sarah Randag. 

Your Honor, I h, ink the place to begin is with 

the 'ssue about the merit' ssr ess of the pla. int' f 's ca. se 

hat' s the first thir g that the Court should consider 

The statements published by the AB. were ~u and 

uth 's an absolute de ense. And I want to briefly go 

=h ough that argument, even though. you Honor heard a. 

similar argument a. t the motion to dismiss stage 

The two statements that are at ssue, -, 'ust fo 

simplicity I will refer to the first one as the e-ma. il 
statemer t . This is the on I hat said hat i he judge 

declared a. mistrial after reviewing an e-mail which stat d 

that Rakofsky had. tricked -- asked this investigator to 
tr1ck a. witness. 

Ar d the second, statement has to do with 

performance. That's the one in which the statement by the 

sa. id tha. t the - - Mr. Rakof sky' s poor trial performance 

gl 8 



Proce dings 

prompted the mistrial. 
. " irst o f al', these statements ar litera. lly 

true . zn tl e f irs t case, the sta. tement that tbe j udge 

dec" 3. red. a mistri3. 1 af' er r viewir. g the -mail, that's in 

fact, the case. nd the trainscript of that proceed. "'ng, 

whlc l 1s be f or8 your Honor, shows 1 t to be the ca. se . He 

mentioned the e-m3. il 3nd then he declared a m' strial. 
The second one is 3. iso literally true. The judg 

sa":d that Yir, R~ofsky's performance was . ot up to a 

reasonabl standard of compet nce 3r d so T. will g arit 

motior: . . ~s your Honor sa. id 3. t th. e coinf nce on Jul. e ". 8 tb. 

on the motion to dismiss, ' t was generous to describe 

3. s onl v Door, probably 3. much harsher ad I ective could have 

been used 

H r Tbe second. thing that's happ ned, your Honor, is 
t'lat M'". Goldsm't rl3s now conceded both c'1 these facts 

was orle or tne t l1ngs that arne out of the June 28 

cor. ferenc . Read. incr f om tbe transcript itself, 
N . t"oldsmith said, "Please trick the old ladv, that is 3. 

fai report of what tbe e-mail stated. " That's the f' rst 
sta. terner t. The second sta. tement is that he sa. ' d th3. t Judge 

Jackson, tbe trial judge in that case, beli ved Rai:o sky' s 

perform3nc fell below a. reasorMle star dard. . 5O he 

f 3. Ct S, he truth of the two s at mer ts -hat the . -DA mad 

has been well established. 



2roceeQ1ngs 

Now, the or ly a gument that I be11ev that 

Mr . Goldsm1th has made to suggest Othe w1. se, 1s thJat 

somehow tne coraection betwe n the va. 'uatior of these 

ev nts and the m'strial hasn' t been established. Iri other 

words, he concedes he -ma. i 1 . coiicedBS the Door 

perrormcL&JCB. What h contests is that nei her one of those 

caused the judge to dec"are the mistrial 

%gain, I believe those arguments, 1 ' k the 

Qvera11 ca. se ti13. t the plairtif fshave brought, 

ivolous 1rs t. QL 3. 11, aga1n, 3. S 3. 11 ter'3. 1 mat e 

e Of thoSB 3. g clmeV tS 1S cor Bct . ' t ' s clea rrom 

a. di a' th ansc. 1pz v ewBd the 

and L e'J de lar d he m1S" r13. ' . i1. s stat Bmeni did 

not say th re was causation Tt sa. " d that or e Jlappened 

af t r the other, tha. t ' s true 

s a ment, e ~ ""dge made qu1te clear 

i, iha: tha L Wcls tI1B mot Vat ' "lg rea. S Oin behind h1 S dBC ' S 1OI1. 

But even, your Honor, even if tha. t was not the case, everl 

if causation somehow was not conceded, the entire argument 

is privileged for rea. sons again tha. t your Honor said, a. t 
1B confereIIce back 1«n June, wh1ck 's i. ~ 3. what «s 

Obv"'OuS1V defama. t ~, her r iw 

Mr. Pakofsky had perform d 3. I d what happened. With the 

e-ma1 I t ' s I1ot J1B causat ' oiJ, 'tna. t your Honor sa" d, 

ag3. 1Il track 1n JuI"ie, what do ' care whether or Ilot ' iler'e wa. s 



Proceedings 

a mistrial in this case, if the judge has labeled 

Yir. RBKofsKy's pe formance a, being pcor o" has aid that 

there was an e-mail that had been submitted to him which 

Gne r f gr Pago f Sk;r ~ S emploxrees Or inQependent 

contractors to tr CK a w1tness 

th1nk that's the f st part of the analys1s, 

tha. these statements are true. That brings us to the 

second pa ", which. is the mo"ion for sane 1ons itsel". 
your Honor mentioned, we Brc proceeding under both sections 

HO &y 0 l 

thc wo pro«1s1ons 1s that one provides for mandato y 

sanctions, thBt ' s erst, and tne second on maKes them 

Q1SCretlolia. j . ' here 

exact 1'j what t)rpe o sanct1ons and costs can be awarded 

the standa Q is fri«olousl ess. And a f ivolous action 

Qe 1tnleQ BS one f olr there 1 s no genu1ne bB s1s 1n J Bw 

01 f BCt, . Ilol gGGG ra" t . 2. rgumenit Gr B C 'BnCe x t 'e maw 

i n2. t 1S c 'e= sat s 1 r "Id again, Mr. Goldsmith' s 

B. G W . yr t ie»r 

~cl' — - ic 

:alt, unoer 8=~ ' . 

not t ue T' 1d h; ms- 

~lcm i «e . sus n s 
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